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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DI VISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

Lori A. Weaver 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Interim Commissioner 603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax:603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Patricia M. Tiiiey www.dhhs.nh.gov
Director

March 29, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Foundation for
Healthy Communities {VC#154533), Concord, NH to add funding and expand the scope of work
to support training and technical assistance for the thirteen (13) New Hampshire Small Rural
Hospitals, by increasing the price limitation by $1,058,657 from $5,662,818 to $6,721,475 with no
change to the contract completion date of May 31, 2024, effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on May 19, 2021, item #23,
amended on December 8, 2021, item #12, and most recently amended on December 7, 2022,
item #13.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See Attached Fiscal Details

3

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is increasing the price limitation by
more than 10% of the original contract, which was competitively bid. The Department is adding
additional funding to further support chronic disease management initiatives in rural hospital
service areas. This funding will allow the Department and the Contractor to provide chronic
disease management and supportive services to rural populations who have difficulty accessing
scarce resources in rural areas. The Contractor will continue to support the thirteen (13) New
Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals by extending care teams with the guidance of the Contractor's
Population Health Peer Group to improve patient outcomes in diabetes and heart disease.
Federal funds are specifically available for rural areas of New Hampshire, where residents have
less access to health management services. This additional funding will be used to improve
project sustainability and the ability of the hospitals to maintain services after funding has ended.

0

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

The Contractor will also support Mobile Integrated Healthcare projects in two (2) Critical
Access Hospitals. Mobile Integrated Healthcare utilizes community paramedics, emergency
medical technicians and other community health care providers to support patients with chronic
conditions in their homes to reduce emergency room visits and re-admission to the hospital. By
supporting innovative care coordination, patient needs can be more fully supported and health
outcomes improved.

The Department will continue to monitor contracted sen/ices by reviewing the reports from
the Contractor of work completed at each New Hampshire Small Rural Hospital and through
monthly monitoring meetings.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the Department will be unable
to provide the thirteen (13) New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals with support necessary to
improve team-based care for residents in their service areas with chronic conditions or ensure
disease management services are accessible to all who need them.

Area served: Rural areas served by New Hampshire's Small Rural Hospitals.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.391, FAIN #NH750T000031;
Assistance Listing #93.301, FAIN #H3HRH00028: and Assistance Listing #93:913, FAIN
#H95RH00149.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds vAW not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,
DoeuSigntd by:

I  IL\am. ft,

Interim Commissioner
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Fiscal Details

05-95-090-902010.1227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH

AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003

(heart)
$150,000 $0 $150,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017002.

(diabetes)
$250,000 $0 $250,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003

(heart)
$20,000 $0 $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017002

(diabetes)
$0 $0 $0

Subtotal $420,000 $0 $420,000

05-95--90-902010-70460000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND

HEALTH SERVICES, ARTHRITIS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current ,
Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017717

$80,000 $0 $80,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017717

$0 $0 $0

Subtotal $80,000 $0 $80,000

05-95-90-901010-24970000- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POLICY AND

PERFORMANCE, SHIP ARP COVID MITIGATION

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

■  Prog Svc
90076020

$3,066,713 $0 $3,066,713

Subtotal $3,066,713 $0 $3,066,713
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05-95 -90-901010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

iHUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PH
lcOVID-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90577150

$1,420,000 $0 $1,420,000

2023 102-500731.
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90577150

$200,000 $0 $200,000

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

■  Prog Svc
90577150

$0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Subtotal $1,620,000 $1,000,000 $2,620,000

.05-95 -90-901010-22190000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, SMALL HOSPITAL IMPROVEMENT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076001

$9,667 $0 $9,667

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076001

$171,932 $0 ' $171,932

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076001

$149,753 $54,605 $204,358

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076001

$144,753 $0 $144,753

Subtotal $476,105 $54,605 $530,710

05-95 -90-901010-79650000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, RURAL HEALTH AND PRIMARY CARE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job.

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 .102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076001

$0 $4,052 $4,052

Subtotal $0 $4,052 $4,052

Total $5,662,818 $1,058,657 $6,721,475
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting Project contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Foundation for Healthy Communities ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 19, 2021, (Item #23), as amended on December 8, 2021, (Item #12), and most recently amended
on December 7, 2022, (Item #13), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Agreement, Section 1.2, subsection 3.3., the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form •P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$6,721,475

2. Modify Exhibit B-Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Subsection 1.14 through 1.20, by removing
it in its entirety.

3. Modify Exhibit B-Amendment #1, Scope of Services, by adding Subsection 1.21, to read:

1.21 The Contractor shall support the Critical Access Hospitals (CAHs) by providing additional
funding and support to implement training, facilitation, peer learning and technical
assistance by providing the following services, which include but are not limited to:

1.21.1 Engaging subject matter experts to help with planning and executing activities
with and for the CAHs to more closely support needs in their service areas.

1.21.2 Utilizing tools and resources to identify groups of individuals most at risk for
having continuous unmet needs due to system barriers.

1.21.3 Providing opportunities for both peer learning and individual consultation to assist
CAHs in reaching their goals to serve all residents.

1.21.4 Funding extensions of care teams that help to address treatment and
management of chronic conditions for rural residents.

1.21.5 Supporting the development and continuation of Mobile Integrated Healthcare
services in rural areas of New Hampshire.

4. Modify Exhibit C - Amendment #1, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-10, Amendment #3, PH COVID-19
Health Disparities SPY 2024 Budget.

5. Add Exhibit C-9, Amendment #3, Small Hospital Improvement SFY Budget, which is attached
hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit C-10, Amendment #3, Rural Health Primary Care SFY 2023 Budget, which'ts attached

f;"
Foundation for Healthy Communities A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A03 Page1of4 Date 3/27/2023
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hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-11, Amendment #3, PH COVID-19 Health Disparities SPY 2024 Budget, which is
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Foundation for Healthy Communities

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A03

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initiais

Date
3/27/2023
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date wntien belovk',

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

3/27/2023

Date

DocuSlgned by;

j  Titlty
.iBi16CB»CtiBC[yCH r-m

Name''®^'"'^''^ m. xiiiey
Title: Director

3/27/2023

Date

Foundation for Healthy Communities
DocuSlgntd by:

—

tacagyg^y40ft w a-c-
•Ames

Name:

Title: Executive Director

Foundalion for Healthy Communities

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A03

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSigntd by:

3/28/2023

inu
Date Name:

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Foundation for Healthy Communities A-S-1.2

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A03 Page 4 of 4
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Small Hospital Improvement
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Exhibit C-10, Amendment
#3 Rural Health Primary

Care SPY 2023 Budget
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E;^ibit C-11. Amendment #3 PH

COVID-19 Health Disparities
SPY 2024 Budget
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secreiar>' of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY

COMMUNITIES is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on October 28,

1968. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccretar>' of State's ofilce have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63943

Certificate Number: 0006170224

%

B&i

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.Ned

the Seal oflhe State of New-Hampshire,

this 24th dav of March A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Sccretar)' of State
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Foundation /br
Healthy Commimities

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Stephen Ahnen. of the Foundation for Healthy Communities, do hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected Secretarv/Treasurer of the Foundation for Healthy Communities;

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted by action of unanimous consent

of the Board of Directors of the Foundation Healthy Communities, duly adopted on October

18, 2021: ■

RESOLVED: That this corporation, the Foundation for Healthy Communities, enters into any and all
contracts, amendments, renewals, revisions or modifications thereto, with the State of New Hampshire,
acting through its Department of Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director or the Vice President of Quality Improvement or the
Secretary / Treasurer for tlie Foundation for Healthy Communities are hereby authorized on behalf of
this corporation to enter into said contracts with the State, and to execute any and all documents,
agreements, and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications-thereto, as he/she
may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. Peter Ames is the duly appointed Executive Director
and Kristine Hering is the duly appointed Vice President of Quality Improvement and Stephen Ahnen
is the duly appointed Secretary/Treasurer of the corporation.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force
and effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is
attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate
of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely
on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent
that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in
contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Secretary/Treasurer of the

Foundation for Healthv Communities this 24^ dav of March 2023.

BOARD MEMBER
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/XCOrId'
NEWHAMP-02

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY-INSURANCE

TFAGERSON

DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

6/7/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or t}e endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER License#1780862
HUB International New England
275 US Route 1
Cumberland Foroslde, ME 04110

CONTACT Gabe Reissman
PHONE FAX
(A/C,No.ExO: (A/C,No):

flabe.reissman@hubinternational.com

INSURER/SI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICfl

INSURER A Hartford Casualty Insurance Company 29424

INSURED .. .. . .. ..
New Hampshire Hospital Assoc.
The Foundation for Healthy Communities
Attn: Linda Lovesque
125 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

INSURER B Twin Citv Fire Insurance Company 29459

INSURER C

INSIJRFR D

INSURERE

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: - REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

IIB. TYPE OF INSURANCE
AOOL
INSD

SUBR
WVD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMM/DDfYYYY^

POLICY EXP
IMM/DO/YYYYl LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILriY

CLAIMS-MADE | X | OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

08 SBA VW2923 SB 6/22/2022 6/22/2023
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea ocarrencal

MEO EXP (Any ona oysonl

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPyE^S PER:
POLICY □51^ O LOG

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:

1,000,000
300,000

10,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
IEfl.accidfipD

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

ONLY

SCHEDULED
■AUTOS
Ni
Al

BODILY INJURY (Pw pefson)

BODILY INJURY (Pet accidafitl
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Pw accKtenti

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 2,000,000
08 SBA VW2923 SB 6/22/2022 6/22/2023

AGGREGATE
2,000,000

DEO X RETENTIONS 10,000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRierORyPARTNER/EXECUTTVE

K yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/N

□
08WECIV5293 6/22/2022 6/22/2023

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

N/A
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

500,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 500,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD101, AddlUonal Rtmerks Schedule, may be attached If more apace It rtqulred)

Foundation for Healthy Communities Is considered a Named Insured for the above mentioned policies.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH
Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) ©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Foundation for

D Healthy Communities

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Mission Statement

The mission of the Foundation for Healthy

Communities is to build healthier communities

for all by leading partnerships, fostering
collaboration, and creating innovative solutions

to advance health and health care.

125 Airport Road j Concord, NH 0330! | Phone: (603) 225-0900 j Fjlx: (603) 225-4346
www.liealihynli.org j info@healthynh.org
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1^ BerryDunn

Z

r.

Foundation for
Healthy Communities

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

FEDERAL REPORTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH UNIFORM GUIDANCE

December 31, 2021 and 2020

With Independent Auditor's Report
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l^BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Foundation for Healthy Communities
(Foundation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Foundation as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with . U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

■In preparing the financial statements, rrianagement is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

Moine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona
berrydunn.com
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities
Page 2

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Sfafemenfs

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

■  includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
.misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 18,
2022 on our consideration of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire
April 18,2022
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Due from affiliate

Prepaid expenses

$ 518,667
194,633
141,135
10.650

$ 345,201
547,234
115,780

10.334

Total current assets 865.085 1.018.549

Investments 1.082.677 962.689

Property and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Equipment and furniture

1,118
147:427

1,118

147.427

Less accumulated depreciation

148,545
148.545

148,545
148.145

Property and equipment, net - 400

Total assets 51.947.762 $1,981,638

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related amounts
Due to affiliate

Deferred revenue

$  22,995
109,901
98,369
9.110

$  21,119
91,070

.  97,731
6.949

Total current liabilities and total liabilities 240.375 216.869

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Operating
Internally designated

1,137,512
379.316

923,080
489.296

Total without donor restrictions 1,516,828 1.412,376

With donor restrictions 190.559 352.393

Total net assets 1.707.387 1.764.769

Total liabilities and net assets $1,947,762 $1,981,638

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Without Donor Restrictions

Revenues

Foundation support
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and

workshops
Interest and dividend income
Net realized and unrealized gain
on investments

Gifts and donations

Grant support
Net assets released from

restrictions

Net assets released from internally
designated

Total revenues

Expenses
Salaries, taxes and benefits
Other operating
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Depreciation

Total expenses

Change in net assets from
operations and total
change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Internally
Operating Designated

$ 483,121 $
1,235,129

123,729
16,943

155,498
5

408,812

246,314

1,589,529
120,006
715,818

29,366
400

2,455,119

214,432

923,080

136,334

(246.3141

Total

$ 483.121

1,235,129

123,729
16,943

155,498
5

545; 146

With Donor

Restrictions

2.669.551 (109.980) 2.559.571

1,589,529
120,006
715,818

29,366
400

2.455.119

(109,980) 104,452

489.296 1.412.376

Total

$ 483,121
1,235,129

123,729
16,943

155,498

5

383,312383,312

(545,146)

(161.834) 2.397.737

1,589,529
120,006
715,818

29,366
400

2.455.119

$1.137.512 $ 379.316 $1.516.828

(161,834) (57,382)

352.393 1.764.769

$  190.559 $1.707.387

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Without Donor Restrictions

Revenues

Foundation support
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Interest and dividend income

Net realized and unrealized gain
on investments

Gifts and donations

Grant support
Net assets released from

restrictions

Net assets released from internally
designated

Total revenues

Expenses
Salaries, taxes and benefits
Other operating
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Depreciation
Recovery of bad debts

Total expenses

Change in net assets from
operations and total
change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Internally
Operating Designated

$ 463,120 $
3,396,795

Total

With Donor

Restrictions

22,033
18,519

$ 463,120 $
3,396,795

22,033
18,519

Total

$ 463,120
3,396,795

22,033
18,519

93,504
196 -

93,504
196

567,282

93,504

196

567,282

338,026 237,213 575,239 (575,239) -

286.413 (286.413) _

4.618.606 (49.200) 4.569.406 (7.957) 4.561.449

1,462,230
124,109

2,865,199

- 1,462,230
124,109

2,865,199

- 1,462,230
124,109

2,865,199

33,130
2,747

(400)

- 33,130
2,747

(400)

- 33,130
2,747

(400)

4.487.015 4.487.015 4.487.015

131,591 (49,200) 82,391 (7,957) 74,434

791.489 538.496 1.329.985 360.350 1.690.335

;  923.080 $ 489.296 $1,412,376 $ 352.393 $1,764,769

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  (57,382) $  74,434

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities

2,747Depreciation 400

Net realized and unrealized gain on investments (155,498) (93,504)

Change in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable 352,601 (189,782)

Prepaid expenses (316) (724)

Due from affiliate (25,355) (3.250)

Accounts payable 1,876 (121,842)

Accrued payroll and related amounts 18,831 44,885

Due to affiliates 638 36,044

Deferred revenue 2.161 f1,064)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 137.956 f252.056)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments - (1,890)

Proceeds from sale of investments 35.510 5.255

Net cash provided by investing activities 35.510 3.365

.  Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 173,466 (248,691)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 345.201 593.892

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year £ 518.667 $ 345.201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Organization

Foundation for Healthy Communities (Foundation) was organized to conduct various activities relating
to healthcare delivery process improvement, health policy, and the creation of healthy communities.
The Foundation is controlled by New Hampshire Hospital Association (Association) whose purpose Is
to assist its members in improving the health status of the people receiving healthcare in New
Hampshire.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on.
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Foundation. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Foundation's management
and the Board of Trustees.

. Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Foundation or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities and changes in net assets. At
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Foundation did not have any funds to be maintained in
perpetuity.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

For purposes of reporting in the statements of cash flows, the Foundation considers all bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

From time-to-time, the Foundation's total cash deposits exceed the federally insured limit. The
Foundation has not incurred any losses and does not expect any in the future.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
I

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings
and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual
accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts
receivable. Management believes all accounts receivable are collectible. Credit is extended without
collateral.

Investments

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are measured at fair value in the statements of financial position. Interest and dividends
and realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in net assets from
operations.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments will
occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the
statements of financial position.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the
estimated useful lives of each class of depreciable asset and is computed using the straight-line
rnethod.

Employee Fringe Benefits

The Foundation has an "earned time" plan under which each employee earns paid leave for each
period worked. These hours of paid leave may be used for vacation or illnesses. Hours earned but
not used are vested with the employee and may not exceed 30 days at year-end. The Foundation
accrues a liability for such paid leave as it is earned.

Grants and Contributions

Grants awarded and contributions received in advance of expenditures are reported as support
with donor restrictions if they are received with stipulations that limit the use of the grants or
contributions. When a grant or contribution restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and
changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. If there are unused grant funds at
the tirhe the grant restrictions expire, management seeks authorization from the grantor to retain
the unused grant funds to be used for other unspecified projects. If the Foundation receives
authorization from the grantor, then the Board of Trustees or management internally designates
the use of those funds for future.projects. These amounts are released from net assets with donor
restrictions to internally designated net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Grant funds conditional upon submission of documentation of qualifying expenditures or matching
requirements are deemed to be earned and reported as revenues when the Foundation has met
the grant conditions.

The amount of such funds the Foundation will ultimately receive depends on the actual scope of
each program, as well as the availability of funds. The ultimate disposition of grant funds is subject
to audit by the awarding agencies.

Grant funds awarded for which restrictions have been met In the year of award are reported in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets in program services revenues and expenses.

Contributions of long-lived assets are reported as support for net assets without donor restrictions
unless donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets
with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets
that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor restrictions.
Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long these long-lived assets must be maintained, the
Foundation reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived
assets are placed in service.

Income Taxes

The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code (Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on related income pursuant to
Section 501(a) of the Code.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, the
Foundation has considered transactions or events occurring through April 18. 2022, which was the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.

2. Availability and Llouiditv of Financial Assets

The Foundation regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to optimize the investment of its available funds.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month
period, the Foundation considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities and general and
administration, as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be
general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the
Foundation operates with, a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

As of December 31, 2021, the Foundation has working capital of $624,710 and average days
(based on normal expenditures) cash on hand of 210, which includes cash and cash equivalents
and investments, less donor restricted funds.

-9-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

The following financial assets could readily be available within one year of the statements of
financial position date to meet general expenditure at December 31:

2021 2020

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 518,667 $ 345,201
Accounts receivable, net 194,633. 547,234
Due from affiliate 141,135 115,780
Investments 1,082,677 962,689
Internally designated funds (379,316) (489,296)
Donor restricted funds (190.559) - (352.393)

Financial assets available at year end for current use
to meet general expenditures $ 1.367.237 $ 1.129.215

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, internally designated net assets represent unused grant funds to
be used for other unspecified projects by management over the next 12 months. The internally
designated net assets are included in cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable, net.

3. Investments and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic
820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value
in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.

FASB ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset
or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the
asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date.
FASB ASC Topic 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize
the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair
value.

The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

The Foundation's investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and are considered
Level 1.

The composition of investments as of December 31 is set forth in the following table. Investments
are stated at fair value.

2021 2020

Marketable equity securities $ 204,492 $ 192,065
Mutual funds 878.185 770,624

$ 1.082.677 $ 962.689

4. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions of $190,559 and $352,393 consisted of specific grant programs
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The grant programs relate to improvements to
access and the delivery of healthcare services.

5. Conditional Promise to Give

During 2016. the Foundation was awarded a grant from the State of New Hampshire in an amount
not to exceed $1,800,000 to facilitate the expansion of New Hampshire's addiction identification
and overdose prevention activities. Subsequent to the original award, the State of New Hampshire
amended the award amount increasing the grant to an amount not to exceed $4,575,824. Receipt
of the grant and recognition of the related revenue was conditional upon incurring qualifying
expenditures. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Foundation recognized program and
grant support related to this award in the amount of $1,104,493. As of December 31, 2020, the
Foundation had received and recognized the full award. No additional awards occurred during
2021.

6. Related Party Transactions

The Foundation leases space from the Association on a monthly basis. Rental expense under this
lease for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $41,184 and $41,255, respectively.

The Association provides various accounting, public relation and janitorial services to the
Foundation.. The amount expensed for these services in 2021 and 2020 was $185,431 and
$173,468, respectively. In addition, the Association bills the Foundation for its allocation of shared
costs. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Foundation owed the Association $98,369 and
$97,731, respectively, for services and products provided by the Association.

The Association owed the Foundation $141,135 and $115,780 as of December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively, for support allocated to the Foundation. For the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, the Foundation received support from the Association in.the amount of $483,121
and $463,120, respectively.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

7. Retirement Plan

The Foundation participates in the Association's 401 (k) profit-sharing plan, which covers
substantially all employees and allows for employee contributions of up to the maximum allowed
under Internal Revenue Service regulations. Employer contributions are discretionary and are
determined annually by the Foundation. Retirement plan expense for 2021 and 2020 was. $55,724
and $48,803, respectively.

8. Functional Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. The expenses allocated include salaries and related taxes,
allocated based on the estimated time utilized on programs, and insurance and depreciation,
allocated'based on the estimated square footage of the total building.

Expenses by function and natural classification are as follows:

2021 2020

Program services
Salaries and related taxes $1,337,571 $1,256,722

Office supplies and other 508,376 548,910

Occupancy 38,449 37,500

Subrecipients - 2,068,198

Subcontractors 251,845 298,400

Seminars, meetings and workshops 35,505 36,700

Insurance 3,346 3,138

Depreciation 320 2.198

Total program services 2.175.412 4.251.766

General and administrative

Salaries and related taxes 251,958 205,508

Office supplies and other 3,689 3,194

Occupancy 21,749 24,306

Recovery of bad debts - (400)
Insurance 2,231 2,092

Depreciation 80 549

Total general and administrative 279.707 235.249

$2,455,119 $4,487,015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Foundation for Healthy Communities
(Foundation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the
related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 18, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Foundation's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness' is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Foundation's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Moine • New Hampshire • Mossochusetts • Connecticut • WestVirginio • Arizona
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Foundation's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
April 18, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF

FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We have audited Foundation for Healthy Communities' (Foundation) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the Office of Management and Budget
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal.program for
the year ended December 31, 2021. The Foundation's major federal program is identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Foundation complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements"
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year
ended December 31, 2021.

Basis for Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of
our report.

We are required to be independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Foundation's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Foundation's federal programs.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com
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Board of Trustees

• Foundation for Healthy Communities

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Foundation's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Foundation's compliance with the requirements
of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the Foundation's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Foundation's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

-16-
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses
as defined above.. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliahce may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion Is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the Foundation as of and for the year ended Decernber
31, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated April 18, 2022, which contained an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance, and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

h\cyUA^C^f

Manchester, New Hampshire
April 18, 2022

-17-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Federal Program

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Pass-through programs;

State of New Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services

Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) and Public
Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP)
Aligned Cooperative Agreements

Federal

AL

Number

93.074

Small Rural Hospital Improvement Grant Program 93.301

State Rural Hospital Flexibility Program 93.241

National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness
Program 93.889

Cooperative Agreement to Support Navigators in
Federally-facilitated and State Partnership
Marketplaces 93.332

Total expenditures of federal awards

Pass-Through
Entity

Identifying
Number

Federal

Expenditures

05-95-90-

902510-2239 $ 745,459

05-95-90-

901010-2219

05-95-90-

902010-2218

6U3REP20064

9-01-00

NAVACA21040

0-01-00

123,772

67,797

2,000

16.288

$  955.316
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended December 31, 2021

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (Schedule) includes the federal
grant activity of Foundation for Healthy Communities (Foundation) under programs of the federal
government for the year ended December 31. 2021. The information in the Schedule is
presented in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a portion of the operations of the
Foundation, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets or cash flows of the Foundation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the Schedule are reported on the accrual-basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

3. Indirect Cost Rate

The Foundation has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended December 31, 2021 .

Section I. - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency{ies) identified not

considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not

considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
2CFR 200.516(a)?

Unmodified

yes X

yes

yes

yes

yes

Unmodified

yes

Identification of Maior Programs

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

93.074 Hospital Preparedness Program (HP

no

none reported

no

no

none reported

no

P) and Public Health
Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Aligned Cooperative
Agreements

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$750,000

X  yes _ no

Section II. - Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

None noted

Section III. - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted

-20-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section I. - Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

None noted

Section II. - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted
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l^ihdation/or"
Healthy CkjmiminiLies

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2023

Lauren Collins-Cline, Chair

Betsey Rhynhart, Vice Chair

Stephen Ahnen, Secretary / Treasurer

Peter Ames, ex officio

Sue Mooney, MD, Immediate Past Chair

Deb Broadhead, RN

James Culhane

Mike Deceile

Cherie Holmes, MD

Fuad Kahn, MD, MBA

Sally Kraft, MD

Eileen LIponIs

Lisa Madden

Tom Manion

Holly McCormack, MSN

Colin McHugh

Jeremy Roberge, CPA

John Skevington

Susan Walsh

Andrew Watt, MD

Director, Corporate Communications & PR, Catholic Medical Center

Vice President, Population Health, Concord Hospital

President, New Hampshire Hospital Association

Executive Director, Foundation for Healthy Communities

President & CEO, Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital

'  Director, Healthcare Management, Anthem

President & CEO, Lake Sunapee Visiting Nurses Association

Dean, UNH Manchester

CMO, Cheshire Medical Center

Sr. Director of Behavioral and Community Health

Mass General Brigham, Wentworth-Douglass Hospital

Vice President of Population Health, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health

Executive Director, New Hampshire Food Bank

President and CEO, Riverbend Community Mental Health Center

President and CEO, New London Hospital

CEO, Cottage Hospital

President & CEO, Southern New Hampshire Health

President & CEO, Huggins Hospital

CEO, Parkland Medical Center

Strategic Business Lead, NH, Harvard Pilgrim Health Care

CMIO, Catholic Medical Center
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Beth Gustafson

Wheeler

Profile Summary

• Work with New Hampshire's non-profit community hospitals to advance population health efforts including
building collaborative opportunities with internal, community and statewide partners.

•  Successful public health professional with 29 years of experience in building healthy environments where people
live, learn, work and play.

•  Strong skills in facilitation, partnership building, community assessment and strategic planning.
•  Experienced in evaluating health improvement strategics using qualitative and quantitative measurement practices.
•  Guided New Hampshire communities in the planning and implementation of health improvement strategies in

the areas of heart disease, diabetes prevention, and obesit)'.

Experience

1/03 - present: Foundation for Healthy Communities, Concord, NH
Director of Population Health
•  Provide leadership and'tcchnical assistance to NHs non-profit community hospitals to assess

current population health efforts, identify opportunities for advancement, and build collaborative
partnerships to ensure efficient and impactful investments in population health.

• Work with healthcare systems and community organizations to foster connections and shared
learning to improve the health and wellbeing of NH residents.

•  Convene hospital community benefit professionals and lead projects to improve the effectiveness
and efficienq' of community benefit reporting and investments in NH.

•  Conduct environmental, system and policy assessments for communities and organizations to guide
strategic direction for health improvement efforts.

•  Determine baseline measures of key health indicators and establish measurement practices.
• Managed the Healthy Eating Active Living (HEAL) NH community grant program, including

technical assistance and grant requirements for HEAL's 4 regional and 4 community initiatives.
•  Planned and facilitated community forums and focus groups as part of HEAL NH's communic)'-

based participatory assessment and planning processes.
•  Initiated and managed the NH CATCH Kids Club Project, spreading the project to over 130 out-of-

school organizations and sites in 7 years.
•  Developed and implemented environment and policy assessment and planning tools for out of

school organizations, resulting in 98% of sites making 4+ environmental or policy improvements.
•  Directed the Community Prevention and Treatment Initiative focused on building a community

health model to improve access to prevention and treatment services for cardiovascular disease,
diabetes, and childhood obesity. Model implemented in a total of 17 NH communities.

•  Assisted primar)' care practices in qualit)' improvement projects relating to the development of
office-based systems, tools, and evaluation methods for chronic disease conditions.

Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH
Senior Healthcare Consultant

•  Collaborated with administrators and clinical staff to develop a diabetes management initiative.
•  Developed, analyzed and presented healthcare data reports to medical and administrative staff.
• Worked with internal staff to address healthcare access issues in the state.

11 /97 - 6/00: Disease Management!Prevention Specialist
• Worked with primary care physicians and staff to improve prevention screening rates.
•  Developed and evaluated cardiovascular disease health management programs.

4/02- 12/02:
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Beth Gustafson

Wheeler

Kestime

Page 2

8/00 - 4/02: Plymouth State College, Universit)' System of New Hampshire, Plymouth, NH
Wellmss Center DJrector

•  Initiated and chaired the Whole Health Team, a multi-department team dedieated to improving the
health of Plymouth State College students.

• Developed, promoted, and implemented health education programs for PSC students.
•  Trained and supervised student educators in group facilitation and education.
•  Adjunct faculty member, Department of Human Health and Performance.

9/95 - 5/97: Matthew Thornton Health Plan, Bedford, NH
Worksite Hea/t/j Promotion Specialist

•  Consulted with corporate accounts on employee health improvement issues providing stratcg)'
development and implementation to reduce medical loss ratios and contain health care costs.

•  Planned, promoted, and performed health risk screenings and health education programming.
•  Evaluated health programs targeted at employer groups and members.
•  Supcr\'iscd team of per diem clinical and educational staff.

9/94-9/95; University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH

Graduate Assistant

•  Coordinated the Universit)' of New Hampshire Phase III Cardiac Rehabilitation Program.
•  -Instructed fitness classes and performed cholesterol, EKG, and exercise tolerance testing.

Education

Masters of Science in Kinesiolog)': University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH, 1996. Thesis Research Project: High
volume versus lom volume resistance exercise: The effects ofa single session on plasma lipid and lipoprotein parameters.

Bachelors of Science in Communit)' Health: Plymouth State College, Plymouth, NH, 1990.

Certifications and Trainings

•  Community Benefit Specialist Certificate, Community Benefit Connect, 2021
•  Population Health Action Communit)', team participant, Institute for Healthcare Improvement, 2020-21,
•  Certified Trainer: CATCH Kids Club, a physical activity and nutrition program, 2009- present
•  Health Impact Assessment Training, Manchester Health Department, October 2010

Awards:

•  High Five Award, NH Recreation and Park Association, May 2010
•  Outstanding Achievement Award, NH Governor's Council on Physical Fitness and Health, May 2010

Professional Affiliations

•  Association for Community Health Improvement Member 2017-prcsent
•  NH Public Health Association Member: 2014-present

•  Coneord Boys & Girls Club Program Committee 2011- 2013
•  Appalachian Trail Conference member 2007- present

References available upon request
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Foundation for Healthy Communities

Key Personnel

Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting Project (PH COVID-19 Health Disparities)
Budget Period July 1, 2023-June 30,2024

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Beth Wlieeler Director of Population Health 75,396 17.50756 $13,200 ■
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiVmON OF PUBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

LorlA.SMWirtte 29 IIAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
CommluloQcr ^603-27MS01 i-600452-334S EiL 4501

Fax:603-271-4827 TOD Acccu: 1-800-73^2964
PaificiaM. TiUfy www.dhhs.nb.gov

DIrcrier

Novembers, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

State House

Concord, New Hampshire .03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with Foundation for Healthy Communities (VC#154533),
Concord! .NH, to support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals by continuing
program jrriprovement activities, by exercising a renewal option, by increasing the price
limitation by $278,176 from $5,384,642 to $5,662,818 and by ortending the completion date from
May 31. 2023 to May 31,-2024, effective upon Governor and Coundl approyai. 100% Federal
Funds.-

The original contract was approved by Governor and Coundl on May 19, 2021, Itern #23
and most recently amended with Govemor'and Council approval on December 8i 202-1, item #12.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to s^just budget line items
within the price'limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget
Office, if needed and justified.

See attached ftscal details.

EXPLANATIolg'

The. purpose of this request is to continue to support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire
Srnaii Rural Hospitals with IrTipiementing activities, chosen by the hospitals as a grpup from :the
.menu'of grant activities, provided annually .by the Small Rural Hospital Improveriient Program,
Grant. The'Contractor will continue to support existing programs and create new priqgrarhs to
address chronic disease pre.ventlon as well as Critical Access Hospital CdVID-IQ/testIng and
mitigations strategies.

The Contractor will receive additional fundirig to support Critical Access Hospital
improvemerit. work as a result of additional federal funding .allocations for New Hampshire. The
Contractor will continue to work vyith the Small Rural Hospitals and support coordinated care
efforts in high need,areas, the Contractor vyill continue to provide community benefit prbfiles. for
each Small.Rural Hospital so the hospitals can maximize the impact of their investfnerits In the
corrimunities they serve. Additidhaliy, the.Contractor will continiue to conduct at least one but not
inore than (2) Medicare Bbotcarhp billing arid coding trainings each grant year to help imprbve
the reyenue streams. of New Hampshire SmairRural Hospitals to ensure fhaximal reimbursement
for services provided.

■TAe Otparlnitnl of H^lih and Human S€rvices'Hisiio'n is fo'Join cbmniunilies aruf/amities
in proifiding opporiunilies for citizens to achievt heaith and independence.



DocuSign Envelope ID; 676FE062-33F8-4D85-8B4B-6B135505EE4B

OocuSIgn Envelope ID: 0CABI052-08FC-4A24.A1D7-O888C190OA87

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Cound)

Page 2 of 2

The Department will monitor contracted services by reviewing the reports from the
Contractor of work completed at each New Hampshire Small Rural Hospital and through monthly
monitoring meetings.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Ooyemor and Council not authorize this request the thirteen (13) New

Hampshire Small Rural Hospital locations will have less capacity to handle the contirtuous
changes in Medicare billing and coding reimbursement, resulting in lost revenue and greater
financial risk. Additionally, the Small Rural Hospitals will not receive the training needed to
support high needs areas, leading to higher readmissions.

Area served; Rural areas served by New Hampshire's Small Rural Hospitals.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.426 FAIN # NU58DP006515;
Assistarice Listing Number # 93.945 FAIN # NU58DP0C)6448; Assistance Listing Numt>er #
93.391 FAIN # NH750T000031. Assistance Listing Number # 93.301 FAIN # H3HRH00028.
Assistance Listing Number # 93.155 FAIN# H3LRH42248.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lorl A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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05-95--090-902010-1227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH
SERVICES, COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /
Account

Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc

90017003

(heart)
$150,000 $0 $150,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
90017002 $250,000 $0 $250,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90017003

(heart)

$25,000 ($5,000) $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90017002

. (diabetes)

$25,000 ($25,000) $0

Subtotal $450,000 ($30,000) $420,000

05-95-90-902010-70460000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND
HEALTH SERVICES, ARTHRITIS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90017717

(arthritis)

$80,000 $0 $80,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90017717

(arthritis)

$80,000 ($80,000) $0

Subtotal $160,000 ($80,000) $60,000

05-95-90-901010-24970000- HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE, SHIP ARP COVID MITIGATION

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /
Account

Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised -

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076020

$3,066,713 $0 $3,066,713

Subtotal $3,066,713 $0 $3,066,713
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05-95 -90-901010-57710000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBUC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PH
COV1D-19 HEALTH DISPARITIES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job
Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90577150

$1,420,000 $0 $1,420,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90577150

$0 $200,000 - $200,000

2024 :102-500731{
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90577150

$0 $0 $0

Subtotal $1,420,000 $200,000 $1,620,000

05-95 -9

HUMAN
ppRpnp

}-9016iO-2219
SVS, HHS: Dl\
MANrP SMA

0000 HEALTH

/ISION OF PUB
1 Hn<^PITAI

AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
Lie HEALTH, BUREAU OF POLICY AND
MPRnVFMFMT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account .
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076001

$9,667 $0 $9,667

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076001

$171,932 $0 $171,932

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076001

$106,330 $43,423 $149,753

2024 102-500731,
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076001

$144,753 $144,753

Subtotal $287,929 $188,176 $476,105

TOTAL $5,384,642 $278,176 $5,662,818
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting project is by and between
the State of New Hampshire. Department of Healtti and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
Foundation for Healthy Communities ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 19. 2021, (Item #23), as amended on December 8, 2021. (Item #12). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Agreement. Section 1.2. subsection 3.3.. the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and coriditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein; the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

May 31. 2024

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:.

$5,662,818

3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore. Director

4. Modify Exhibit 0 - Amendment #1. Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall t}e on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified In Exhibits 0-1, Budget through Exhibit C-8, Amendment #2. Small Hospital
Improvement SPY 2024 Budget.

5. Modify Exhibit C - Amendment #1. Payment Terms, Section 8. to read:

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B. Scope of Services - Amendment
#1. in compliance with funding requirements.

6. Modify Exhibit C • Amendment #1. Payment Terms. Section 9. to read:

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld. In whole or in
part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit B. Scope of Services
- Amendment #1.Modify Exhibit C-3, Amendment #1 Budget by deleting it in its entirety.

7. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment,#2. Combined Chronic Disease SFY 2023 Budget, which Is attached
hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit C-5. Amendment #2. PH COVID-19 Health Disparities SFY 2023'Budget, which is
.attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit 0-6, Amendment #2. Small Hospital Improvement SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit C-7,,Amendment #2, Small Hospital improvemeht SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

11. Add Exhibit C-8, Amendment #2. Small Hospital Improvement SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached.
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Foundation for Heallhy Communhles A-S-1.3 Contractor InltlateW'yy^v^r
RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date'
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior ameridments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

U/14/2022

Date

C—OMuSl0ft«dby:
. TW*•7

Name:

Title: Director.

Foundation for Healthy Communities

11/11/2022

Date

•DQCuSlen«d by;

Name:
jKle; Executive Director

Foundation for Healthy Communilies

RFA-2D21-DPHS-06.SMALLtC1-A02

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

X  0oeuSlgn«4 by;

11/14/2022 ^
^  rinnifMjuii'nn

Date Name:

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ . (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Foundation for Healthy Communities A-S-1.2

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
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. Exhibit C-4, Amendment #2.
Combined Chronic Disease

SPY 2023 Budget
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Exhibit C-5, Amendment #2.
PH COVI019 Health Disparities

SPY 2023 Budget

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A02
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Exhibit C-6. Amendment #2,

Small Hospital Improvement
SPY 2023 Budget

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A02
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Exhibit C-7,Amendment #2

Small Hospital Improvement
SFY 2023 Budget
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Exhibit C-8,Amendment #2

Small Hospital Improvement
SFY 2024 Budget

RFA-2021-DPHS-06-SMALL-01-A02
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN' SERVICES

DtmiON OF PUBUC HEALTH SE/tyJCES

LoriA-ShlMntne 29 HaZEN DRIVE.CONCORD, NH 03301
Commbrioner 603-27M50I I-800-8S2.334S Exl 4S0I

Fax: 603-27M827 TOD Accm: I-800-73S-29M
PifHdi M.THity tt-Hiv.dhhs.nkgov

Dlrceior

November 3. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T, Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health' and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with Foundation for Healthy Communities (VC#154533),
Concord. NH. to support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals with
implementing COVID-19 testing and chronic disease mitigation activities, by increasing the price
limitation by $5,152,645 from $231,997 to $5,384,642 with no change to the contract completion
date of May 31, 2023. effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Theoriginal contract wasapproved by Governor and Council on May 19.2021. (Item #23). '

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between :<
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

V  EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to assist the thirteen (13) New Hampshire. Small Rural
Hospitals that have beqn made financially vulnerable by the COVID-19 pandemic and fiscally
responsible for resource intensive COVID-19 testing and mitigation activities. A secondary
purpose of this funding is to support preventive and supportive services for chronic disease
patients In the Small Rural Hospital service areas.

The Contractor will conduct up to three (3) Medicare Bootcamp billing and coding trainings,
each, gran! year l6-help support the revenue streams of .New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals to
ensure maximum reimbursement for services is achieved. Additionally, the Contractor will vyork
with New Ha.mpshire Small Rural Hospitals to participate in a population Health Peer Group to
share Information and efforts they.have used to improve the health of people living In the areas
surrounding rural hospitals.

This amendment supports existing programs and creates new programs to address
chronic disease prevention as well as Critical Access Hospital COVID-19 testing and mitigation
strategies. The Contractor will work with the Department to improve health care Iri rural areas by
providing funding to support increased COVID-19 testing efforts and expand access to testing in
rural communities.

This request also provides funding to ensure the Coniraclor links New Hampshire Small
Rural Hospitals with resources to support Implementation of chronic disease prevention and
management projects to meet the needs of patients with chronic and complex medical conditions,
including heart disease, diabetes, asthma, and arthritis.

The DeporimenI of Heotlh and flumon Services' Miuion is lojein eomniunilics and families
in providing opparliinilUs for cUitens to oehieue fieollh and independence.
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His Excellency. Governor Civfsiopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable Council

• Page 2 of 2

The Contractor will ensure thai New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals and the laboratory,
used for processing specimens collect, handle, process and test specimens in compliance v^th
guidelines issued by the CDC.

The Department will monitor contracted services by reviewing the reports from the
Contractor of work completed at each" New Hampshire Small Rural Hospital and through monthly
monitoring meetings.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) additiona) years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the pairties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the thirteen "(13) New
Hampshire Small Rural Hospital locations will not have assistance with funding to implement
COVID-19 testing and chronic disease mitigation activities.

Area served; Rural areas served by New Hampshire's Srriall Rural Hospitals

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number (ALNff) (formerly CFDA#) 93.426.
FAIN #NU58DP006515; ALN #93.945. FAIN #NU58DP006448; ALN #93.155. FAIN #H3L42248;
ALN #93.301. FAIN #H3JRH3744e; ALN #93.391, FAIN #NH750T00031

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will hot
be requested lo support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

21IMA)>(OUMl-

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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Fiscal Details Attachment

05-95-90-902010-12270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH ANO HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POLCY & PERFORMANCE. COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services

90017003

(heart)
SO S150.000 5150,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services

90017003

(diabetes)
SO 5250,000 S2S0,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services

90017003

(heart)
.  SO 525,000 525,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services

9001703

(diabetes)-
so S25,000 525,000

Subtotol $0 $450,000 $450,000

05-95-90-90201O-7O46aa00 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ARTHRITIS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contractsfor

Program Services

90017717

(arthritis)
SO $80,000 580,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services

90017717

(arthritis)
SO 580,000 $80,000

Subtotal so $160,000 $160,000

05-9S-90-901010-24970000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH ANO HUMAN SVS, HHS;
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, SHIP ARP COVIO MITIGATION

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased]

Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90076020 SO $3,066,713 $3,066,713

Subtotal $0 $3,066,713 $3,066,713

05-95-90-901010-57710000 HEALTH ANO SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SyS. HHS:
PUBLIC HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PH COVIO-10 HEALTH DISPARITIES

State

Fiscal.

■ Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90577100 SO 51,420.000 $1,420,000

Subtotal $0 $1,420,000 $1,420,000
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Fiscal Oetails Attachment

05-95-90-901010-2219 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HNS: DIVISION

OF PUBLIC HEALTH. SMALL HOSPITAL IMPROVEMENT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class TIHe ' Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90076001 S9,6G7 SO '  $9,667

.2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90076001 $116,000 $55,932 $171,932

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90076001 $106,330 $0 5106,330

, Subtotal ■  $231,9$7 $55,932 $287,929

TOTAL $231,997 $5,152,645 $5,3B4,642
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting project is by and between
the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("Stale" or "Departrnenl").and
Foundation for Healthy Communities ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 19. 2021. (Item #23). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms arxJ
conditions specifted in the Contract and In consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A. Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, Section 1. Subsection 1.2.. the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of (he agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,384,642.

2." Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services, by replacing it in its entirely with Exhibit B-Amendment #1
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein, in order to
respond to Small Rural Hospital needs exacerbated by the COVID-19 Pandemic. •.

3. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, by adding Subsection 3.1 to read:

3.1. The Contractor shall provide a stipend of $4,170 per hospital per Exhibit 8 - Amendment
#1, Scope of Services, as budgeted for In Exhibit C-2 - Amendment #1 Budget and Exhibit
C-3-Amendment#! Budget.

4. Modify Exhibit C-2'Budget, by replacing it In its entirely with Exhibit C-2 - Amendment #1 Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by.reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit C-3, Budget by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-3 - Amendment #1 Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

RPA-2021 -DPHS-OS-SMALL-01 -AOI Foundation for Healthy Communities Conlraclor Initials:
Th

A-S-l.O PageloI 3 Date:
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All terms and conditior^s of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain In full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor arid Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS VVHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, '

State of New Hampshire
Oepartment.of Health and Human Services

11/19/2021

Date M. Yil ley

Title: Director

11/19/2021

Date

Foundation for Healthy Communities
by:

Title: Executive Director

RFA-2021'I3PHS-06-SMALL-01-A01 Foundaliofl for Healthy Communities Conlraclor Initials:

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 3 Dale:
11/19/2021
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

b)i>.

J. [kn'Jtdfliir MatLJL
Date ^ Marshall ^

Title: Assistant Attorney CeneraV

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE.OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

:«le- V ••RFA-2021-OPHS-0&-SMALL-OI-A01 Foundation for Healthy Communilles Conlracior Iniilals;

A-S-1.0 • Page3of3 Dale:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting Project

EXHIBIT B • Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall assist and support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire Small
Rural Hospitals (SRHs) to implement the activities the hospitals choose as a
group from the menu of grant activities provided annually by the Small Rural
Hospital improvement Program (SHIP) Grant, which may include, but are not
limited to:

1.1.1. Joining accountable care organizations (ACOs).

1.1.2. Participating in shared savings programs.

1.1.3. Purchasing health information technology, to comply with quality
improvement activities, which may include advancing patient care,
information, promoting interoperability, and payment bundling.

1.2. The Contractor shall engage the thirteen (13) New Hampshire SRHs in order to
identify how small rural facilities can target their services to the areas of highest
need. The Contractor shall:

1.2.1. Facilitate a peer-learning group of SRHs with the goal of sharing lessons
learned and current efforts to promote population health.

1.2.2. Support hospitals in completing the Pathways to Population Health
Compass Assessment to obtain a baseline of where their current
population health efforts are along the continuum and provide a stipend
of $4,170 per hospital upon completion of the assessment.

1.2.3. Analyze the community benefit activities completed by the SRHs and
match expenditures to the most recent Community Health Needs
Assessments to create an investment portfolio for each SRH.

1.2.4. Assist SRHs with identifying priority areas, as supported by data reports
issued by the Bureau of Public Health Statistics and Informatics (BPHSI)
which uses aggregated data, publicly available on the State of New
Hampshire DHHS Data Portal, and connecting the SRHs with Slate and
community resources to accomplish identified goals.

1.2.5. Liaise with the Department's DPHS Rural Health Manager to find
resources available for initiatives that SRHs are interested In

implenienting.

1.2.6. Identify Community Based Organizations that may support SRH
acllvilles.

1.2.7. Appoint a Director of Population Health for this project who is available
to support SRHs and answer questions throughout the project period.

1.2.8. Host a monthly gathering of SRH population health managers, either
virtually or In-person, In order to :

.  - . . .

RFA-2021-OPHS>06-SMALL4)1-A01 Foundailon for Hpsllhy Communities Contrpctor lnlllats>

,  ..A A 11/19/2021B-1.0 Pago 1 of 10 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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1.2.8.1. Provide networking opportunities.

1.2.8.2. Provide resources for hospitals ready for ihe next phase of
the project, as defined in the work plan.

1.2.8.3. Share success stories and lessons learned from those who
have successfully implemented initiatives.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all contract activities are pre-approved by the
Department's Rural Health and Primary Care Section (RHPCS).

1.4. The Contractor shall coordinate a minimum of two (2) Medicare Bootcamps per
year, not to exceed three (3) Medicare Bootcamps per year. The, Contractor
shall-ensure:

1.4.1. Medicare Bootcamp curriculum supports the SRH revenue streams by
ensuring maximal reimbursement for services is obtained.

1.4.2. SRHs are aware of scholarship funds available to support staff
attendance at Medicare Bootcamp trainings.

1.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to manage a scholarship
program that promotes Medicare Bootcamp attendance for SRH staff.

1.6. The Contractor shall maintain a Medicare Bootcamp attendance list that
includes telephone and email contact information for each attendee, which must
be given to the Department's RHPCS no later than two (2) weeks following each
training.

1.7. The Contractor shall evaluate all activities, projects and trainings by utilizing
evaluation tools provided by (he Department or by adding evaluation questions
to the Contractor's topis.

1.8. The Contractor shall assess the content of projects, activities, and/or trainings
for quality and the long-term effects on the function of SRHs.

1.9. the Contractor shall meet, in a frequency determined by the Contractor and
SRHs. with a representative group of Chief Financial Officers for the SRHs to

V  plan aspects of learning sessions, which include but are not limited to:

1.9.1. Major objectives of the Bootcamps.

1.9.2. Recruitment of participants for the sessions.

1.9.3., Organizatipn of all components of the education sessions for delivery. •

1.9.4. Creation or selection of learning sessions based oh the needs prioritized
by Chief Financial Officers.

1.10. The Contractor shall engage each interested SRH In the Population Health and
Hotspotting Project (PHHP), which utilizes hospital inpatient and outpatient data
provided by the Department as well as several National datasets to examine
where certain physical health and social determinants of health risk factc^ are
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clustered in hospital service areas to improve the health of residents in each
hospital service area and ensure maximal reimbursement in the transition to
value-based payments. The Contractor shall ensure activities, include, but are
not limited to:

1.10.1. Completing the Pathways to Population Health Compass Assessment,
created by the Institute for Healthcare Improvement, to assess how the
SRH are supporting population health efforts in their service area. The
Contractor shall ensue the assessment team Includes a variety of
stakeholders, which may include but are not limited to:

1.10.1.1. PHHP contact. " ' ■

1.10.1.2. Staff responsible for Population Health.

1.10.1.3. Communily Health Workers/Care Coordinators.

1.10.1.4. Hospital administration.

1.10.1.5. Staff responsible for Community Benefits.

1.10.1.6. Quality improvement staff.

1.10.1.7. Staff responsible for Patient & Family Engagement.

1.10.2. Engaging SRHs to participate in the Population Health .Peer Group,
which includes, bulls not limited to:<

1.10.2.-1. Peer-to-peer sharing of best practices.

1.10.2.2. Tools utilized to create/promote population health initiatives.

1.10.2.3. Overall strategies related to population health.

.  1.10.3. Creating communily benefits profiles by outlining:

1.10.3.1. Community investments;

1.10.3.2. Health disparities identified; and

1.10.3.3. Identification of how hospital investments are addressing
ideritified disparities. .

1.10.4. Supporting SRHs with identifying goals that advance population health
•  .efforts, by reviewing service area ho.tspotting analyses from the

Department. The Contractor shall review hotspotting analyses,- which
includes but is not .limited to:

1.10.4.1. Mapping of aggregate resident data by service area. '*

1.10.4.2. Heat maps that indicate clusters of population health and
social determinants of health needs in hospital service
areas.
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1.10.4.3. Highlights of the most prevalent needs in hospital service
areas and alignment with community benefit profiles to
Indicate opportunities for future investments.

1.10.5. Assisting with the creation of action plans to address health disparities;
support effective and efficient investments; and improve population
health efforts.

■  1.10.6. Evaluating the data by:

1.10.6.1. Assisting each hospital In the identification of metrics to

measure progress with population health activities; and ■

1.10:6.2. Revisiting data at each development meeting with the SRHs
to understand the impact of population health activities, the
data includes:

1.10.6.i2.1.GIS Mapping/Hot-Spotting data;

1.10.6.2.2.Completing and/or reviewing IHI Pathways to "
Population Health Compass Assessments,
periodically, to measure progress: and

1.10.6.2.3.Community Benefit Profiles and investments.

1.10.6.3. Creating case study write-ups at the conclusion of the
.  projects through a guided interview process that can then be

shared with SRH peers.

1.10.7. Acting as the liaison between the Department's DPHS. Bureau of Public
■Health Statistics and Informatics (BPHSI) and the ■SRH(s).

1.10.8. Meeting with hospital leadership to define which member{s) of each
hospital will participate in a learning collaborative for population health
initiatives.

1.10.9. Documenting monthly the number of times:

1.10.9.1. , Contact was attempted via telephone.
1.10.9.2. Contact was made via telephone.

. 1.10.9.3, . Meeting was held via telephone.
1.10.9.4. In-person meeting was completed.

1.10.9.5. New hospital representative was recruited for learning
collaborative.

1.10.10. Documenting the number of SRHs that participate in the learning
collaborative meetings, specifying date, time, and participants.

1.10.11. Referring SRHs to resources and programs available to enhance
population health efforts including those available at the of

RFA*202l-OPHS-06-SMALt.-01-A01 Foundollon (o< Haslihy Communilles Contraclor Inillols
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Population Health and Community Sen/Ices and the other Community
Based Organizations to implement and bolster new initiatives.

1.10.12. Engaging SRHs in the Strategic Population Health Activities for Rural
Communities (SPARC) project by linking interested SRHs with
resources that support implementation of prograrhs that meet the needs
of patients with chronic and complex medical conditions, which result
In prevention of unnecessary hospital visits.

1.10.1 i Referring SRHs to resources that support implementation of chronic
disease prevention and management projects that focus on;

1.10.13.1. Using surveillance data and data from the electronic health
record to develop plans to target:;

1.10.13.1.1. Heart disease;

1.10.13.1.2. Diabetes;

1.10.13.1.3. Asthma; and

1.10.13.1.4. Arthritis;

1.10.13.2. Implementing strategies to increase use of recommended
preventive dinicai strategies from the United States

;• Preventive Services Taskforce;

1.10.13.3. Linking clinical and community supports to' help reduce
health disparities; and

1.10.13.4. Making policy, system and environmental changes In the
community that help community members live healthy lives.

'1.11. The Contractor shall engage SRHs to develop initiatives in partnership vwth the
providers that may include, but are not limited to:

1.11.1. Area Emergency Medical Services (EMS) agencies.

1.11.2. Diabetes Care and Education Specialists.

1.11.3. Diabetes Education Program Cpordinators.

1.11.4.' Pharmacists.

1.11.5. Physical Therapists.

1.11.6. Community Health Workers.

1.11.7. Care Coordinators.

1.11.8. Primary Care Providers.

1.11.9. Regional Planning Commissions.

1.11.10.Pppulation Health Staff.

I.'l 1.11. Quality Assurance and/or Quality Improvement Staff.
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1.11.12. EMS Medical Director.

1.11.13.EMS Medical Coordinator. >

1.11.14. Emergency Department staff.

1.11.15. Visiting Nurses Associations.

1.11.16. Home Health Agencies.

1.11.17. Mobile Integrated Healthcare Programs that meet the requirements of-
the NH Bureau of EMS and are licensed.

1.12. The Contractor shall monitor completion of Department approved SRH Work
Plans and pay related monthly Invoices within one week of receiving invoices
for Department approved expenses.

1.13. Work Plan

1.13.1. The Contractor shall work with the Department to finalize a Work Plan
for year one (1) of the Contract period within thirty (30) days of the
Contract effective date.

1.13.2. The Contractor shall develop and submit a draft Work Plan for year two
(2) of the contract period no later than ninety (90) days prior to the end
of year one (1) of the Contract period.

1.13.3. The Contractor shall work with the Department to finalize the Work Plan
for year two (2) of the Contract period prior to the start of year two (2).

1.13.4. The Contractor shall ensure work plans are used to confirm progress
.  toward meeting the performance measures and program objectives.

1.13.5. The Contractor shall provide a final staffing and staffing contingency
plan to the Department no later than five (5) days from the contract
effective date.

1.14. The Contractor shall. In collaboration with the Department, work to improve
COVID-19 testing and mitigation In small rural .hospital service areas, by
following current CDC guidance relative to COVID-19 testing and mitigation.

1; 15. The Contractor shall refer all SRHs to the Department's guidance on conducting
specimen collection and testing for SARS-CoV-2,- In accordance with CDC
guidelines, in an outpatient setting for individuals who reside within the hospital
catchment area or local community, regardless of individuals' prior affiliations
with the hospital..

1.16. The Contractor shall refer all SRHs to the Department's guidance on collecting,
handling, processing and testing specimens in compliance with guidelines
issues by the CDC and by the laboratory used for processing specimens.

1.17. The Contractor shall refer all SRHs to the Department's guidance on providing
communication and language assistance to individuals, as approp(&^:^hd
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needed, to ensure the validity of any signed consent by utilizing translated
consent forms and/or interpreters.

1.18. The Contractor shall refer all SRHs to the Department's guidance that all
personnel collecting, handling, processing and transporting 'specimens are
trained to safeguard the confidentiality of the patient and protected health
information (PHI), as defined in the Health Information Portability and
Wccountability Act (HIPAA). -

1.19. The Contractor shall refer all SRHs to .the Department's guidance that
transportation of specimens to the laboratory must be secure and confidential.

1.2G. The Contractor shall refer all SRHs to the Department's guidance that the
ordering provider for each COVIO-19 test rnust be a licensed medical provider.

2. Exhibits incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Paris 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1998, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parlies.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall communicate to the Department's RHPCS through
monthly meetings held in person or with the use of a virtual platform that shall
include, but is not limited to the following information:

3.1.1. Plans for implementing SHlP menu activities.
C*''

3.1.2. Specific activities provided.

3.1.3. Budget status.

3.1.4. An attendance list for activities held.

. 3.2. The Contractor shall erisure all reports are formatted in a manner that can be
shared directly with the SRHs.

3.3. The Contractor shall, in accordance with best practice standards and
processes as provided by the Office of Health Equity, ensure SRHs consistently
collect' correct race and/or ethnicity demographic identifiers for individuals
receiving COVID-19 testing and .enter the information either mariually or
electronically on the hospital or reference laboratory C0VIDr19 test re^wi^ition
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forms.

4. Performance Measures ,,

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are achieved
annually and monitored monthly' to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement;

4.1.1. 50% of participant's report making a change or planning to make a
change in their billing processes as a result of attendance at Medicare
Bootcamp.

4.1.2. 50% of SRHs engage In the Population Health Peer Group through
recruitment efforts by the Contractor.

4.1.3. Outreach to ail SRHs to engage them in the Population Health and
Hotspotting project.

4.1.4. 100% of all chronic disease prevention funded projects are written up
in the form of case studies In a format guided by the Division within
six months of the project period closing.

4.2. The Contractor shall develop- and submit a Corrective Action Plan for any
performance measure in Section 4.1 that are not achieved to the Department
on an annual basis.

4.3. The Contractor shall complete quarterly reports as required by the Department.
The quarterly report .shall be completed for each hospital participating in the
American Rescue Plan Testing and Mitigation program in the portal, provided
by the Health Resources and Services Administration. Quarterlyreporting for
SPARC projects should include progress by SRHs on implementation and
short-term outcome measures and information on financial expenditures.

4.4. The Department seeks to actively and regularly collaborate; with providers, to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.5. The Department may collect other key data and metrics from Contractor(s),
■■ including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4.6. The Department may Identify expectations for active and regular coilaboratipn,
■  including .key performance objectives, in the resulting contract. Where
applicable, Contractor(s) must collect and share data with the Department in a
format specified by the Department. •

4.7. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, .and adjust program delivery

• and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.8. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
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data.

4.9. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that; to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an .impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1.' The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language' assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have'speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
v<, materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the

services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
'  preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an

Contract with the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the Stale of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United Stales Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. Ail materials produced or purchased under the Agreemenit shall have
,  prior approval from the Department before printing, production.

distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

• 5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.
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5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4.' The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without .prior written approval from the Department.

6. Records

6.1. The. Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received,
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the'Departmenl, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

6.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention.hereunder, the
Department, the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the .term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the

■  Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor. .
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April 12. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health ar^l' Human Services.'Division of Public Healih
Services to enter Into a contract with Foundation for Healthy Communities .(VCffI 54533),
Concord! NH in the arnounl of $231,997 to assist and support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire
small rural hospitals with Implementing activities provided l>y ihe Small Rural Hospital
Improvement Program (SHIP) Grant, with the option to renew for up to two (2) a.ddiiional years,
effective June 1. 2021 or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever Is later, through May
31, 2023.100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021. and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023. upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price timiiaiion and encumbrances between state fiscal years though the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

. 05-95-90-901010-22190000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SyS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. . BUREAU OF POLICY &
performance, SMALL HOSPITAL IMPROVEMENT

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
90076001 $9,667

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
•90076001 $116,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
90076001 $106,330

Total $231,997

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is io support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire Small Rural
Hospitals with Implementing the acUviiies. chosen by the hospitals as a group from the menu of
grant acllviiies. provided annually by the Small Rural Hospital Improvement Program Grant.

Approximately 150 New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals staff will be served from June
1.2021 to May 31. 2023.

T7>f DtporlmenlctHtohh Oitd Human Scfvic<$'^fUtion U lojoin taminunit'Ki end fomilitt
in fi/widin/oppofiiiniiici lof dluent to ethituc heolih end indtpend<nt<..
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The Contractor will support and assist the Small Rural Hospitals with gran!
activities that Include, joining accountable care organizations, participaiing In shared savings
programs, and purchasing heallh information technology. Id comply with quality lmprovemef\t
activities, which may include advancing p'atieni care information, promoting interoperability, and
payment bundling.

For. grant years 2021 and 2022. the New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals will continue
to partidpate ln the fviedicare Bootcamp billing, coding trainings and the Population Heallh end
Holsponlog Project conducted over the last two year^. The Population Health end Hotspottlng
Project utilizes hospilol inpatlent and outpatient data galhorod by the Division of Public Health
Services as well es'severai National dalasets to examine where certain physical health arx] social
determinants of health risk factors are clustered in hospital service areas.

•T>ie Contractor will work with the Small Rural Hospiiais to Identify prio'fity areas, as defined
by data-analysis provided by the Stale, and connect Small Rural Hospitals with State and
community resources to suppon high needs areas. The Coniracior will provide community benefil
profiles for each Small-Rural Hospital in order that the hosptials can optimize their investments to
the highest priorities in their service areas.

The Contractor will conduct a! least one but not more than two (2) Medicare Bootcamp
billing and coding trainings each grant year to help support the revenue streams of New
Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals to ensure maximal reimbursement for services provided, in.
addition, the Contractor will work with the New Hampshire Small Rural Hospitals to participate in
Population Heallh Peer Groups to share best practices, learn tools to create/promote population
health initiatives, and share overall strategies related to populdUon heallh.

The Department will monitor conlracled services using" Ihe following performance
measures;

•  50% of participants report making a charige or planning to make a change in billing
processes as a result of attendance at Medicare Bootcamp.

♦  50% of Small Rural Hospitals engage in the Population Health Peer Group, through
recruitment efforts of Ihe Coniracior.

The Department selected the Contractor through a 'cornpetilive bld process using a
Request for Appilcallons (RFA) that was posted on the Department's website from 1/22/2021
through 2/17/2021. The Department received one (-1) response that was reviewed and scored by
a team of qualified Individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A of Ihe attached contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for gp to two (2) additional years, contlngent.upon satisfactory delivery ol services,
available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council noi authorize this request thirteen (13) New Hempshire
Small Rural Hospitals locations will be ill-equipped to handle Ihe continuous changes in Medicare
billing and coding reimbursement. resuMingjn lost revenue and greater financial risk. Addilionally.
the Small Rural Hospitals will noi receive the training needed to give hospital staff the tools to-
manage billing and coding and to ensure financial health of (he Institution. Finally, should the
hotspolting project not be funded, hospitals will not have the capacity and/or skills needed to
analyze health and disease data to target areas of high need.
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Hh. Excellency. Governor Chrtstopher T. Surv^
end the Honoreiilo Cooncfl
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Ared served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.301. FAIN (S H3HRH00028

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

my'Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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Notice: This agrccmeni and all of its siiachmenis shall become publie upon submission to Governor and
Exceuiive Council for fipprovel. Any informiiion thai is private, conndemiol or proprietary rnust
be.clearly ideniined (O the agency and agreed lo in writing prior lo signing the contract.

agreement

The Stoic q{ New Hampshire and the Conin>c(or hereby muiually agree as foilov/s:

GENERAL PROVlStONS'

I. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State AgcfKy Name

New Hampshire Oepanmeni of Health and Human Service.^

1.2 SiDie Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301.3857

1.3 Coniraclor Name

Foundation for Healthy Communities

1.4 Coniroctor Address

125 Airport Rd.
Conpord.NH 03301.

I.S Contractor Phone

Number

(603)225-0900

1.6 Account Niimbcr

05.95-90-90IOI0-

22190000

1.7 Completion Date

May31.2023

1.6 price Limitation

$231,997

1.9 ConirociingOrriecr for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
OeewSJgmO Oir

1  Daie:V20/202l.

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Peter Ames Executive Director

l.)3 STSTe'TtgeiicySriJfiaturc
/—0wSene«0r:

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Lisa M. Morris olrector, Division of Public

1.13 Approval by tlic N.H. Dcpartmchi of Adminisinilion. Division of Personnel (if upplicohic)

Oy: Director, On: V

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form. Substance end Execution) (T/o/s^//co6/e^

_  4/30/2O21

1.17 Appro^aH^HE'CdWf/fior and Executive Council (ifappticoblc)

C&C Item number: C&C Meeting Date: '

HeaUl

Pogc I of 4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siaie of New
Hampshire, ac(ing ihrough ihe agency itfcniificd in block I.I
("Sraie"), engages conirocior ideniided in block 1.3
("Conifacior") «o perform, and ihe Conirtcior shall pcrfomi. |hc
work or sale of goods, or boih, Ideniiried and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated
herein by reference ( 'Services").,

3. EFFECTIVE DATDCOMPLETlON OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding arty provision of this Agreerrteni to ihe
contrary, and subject to the opprovol of ihe Governor end
E.xccuiivc Council oPiKc Sisic orNe«v Hompshiro, ifepplicebie,

(his Agreement, and oil obligations of (he ponies hcreunder, shall
become effective on Ihc date the Governor and E.xecuiive
Council approN'c this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approx-al is required, in xvhich case the Agreement
shall become elTectivc on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Stole Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTective Date'").
3.2 If the Coniracior commences the Serx-iccs prior to the
Effeeiivc Oaie. all Scr\'icc$ performed by the Gonirocior prior to
the GITcciivc Date shell be performed oi the sole risk of the
Conirocior. ond in the event thai this Agreement does rot become
cfrective, (he Stale shall have no liability to (he Contractor,
including without llmiiaiion, any obligation to pay (he
Coniracior for ony costs Incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete oil Serx'iccs by (he Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
eomniry, all obligations of the State hercunder, including,
wiihoitt limitation, the continuance of paymcni.t hercunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds alTcctcd by any stoic or.federal legislative or oiecuiixe
Miion that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifie.« the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. (n no cxxni shall the State be liable for any payments
hercunder in c-tcess of Such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Stale shall hax'C.the right to withhold payment until such funds
become nvnilabic, if ever, nnd shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Coniracior notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other,
account or source'to the Account Ideniined in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTftACT PRICDPRICE LIMITATION/
.PAVMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and morcpanicuiarly described in EXHIBIT C
which is i.netsrporaied herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and ilU complete rcimbur.iemeni to (he Coniracior for all
expenses, of whatever nature Incurred by the Contmclor in the
pcfformancc hereof, and shall be the only ond the complete

cornpensaiion to the Coniroctor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability id the Comraclor other than (he contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under (his Agreement (hose
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7-c or ony other provision oflnw.
5.4 NoiNviihsianding nny provi.«:ion in this Agreement to the
contrary, ond notwiihsianding une.tpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of ail payments authorized, or actually made
hercunder, exceed (he Price Limitation sci forth in block 1.8.

4. COMPLIANCCBV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with ihc performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, tows,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or. municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opponunily laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Coniracior
shall comply with all federal c.xecuiive orders, rules, regulations
and siatuiei, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines a.x the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall elsoeomply with all applicable intellectual
propeny laws. ^
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Coniracior shall not
di.scrimlnaie against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin'and will take ofrirmaiivc action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agtees to permit the State or United States
' access lo any of the Coniroctor'sbooks.rccords and accounts for
(he purpose of ascenaini'ng compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and (he covenants, icrrrut and conditions of this
Agreement.

7, PERSONNEU
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own e.spense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
nil personnel cngngcd in the Services shall be qualincd to'^
perform the Services, and shall be properly liccn.sed ond
Otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable lows.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in'wriiing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of si.x (6) months sAer-ihe
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined elTon lo
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Sinie employee
or ofncial, who Is materially involved in the procurement,
adminisiraiion or performance of this Agreement. This
provisiort shall survive lerminiiion of this Agreement.
7.3 The Comrocting OITicef specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event ofnny
dispute concerning ihe inierpreiaiion of this Agreement, the
Contracting OITicer's decision slinll be final for the Stnte.

P6gc2or4
Coniracior Jniiials
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8. CVCNT OF DEFAULT/RCMEOJES.
t.\ Ajiy one Of more of ihc follomog ocis Of omissions of ihc
Conirocio' consutuie an cvenl of default here under ("Eveni
of Oefftuli"):
8.1.1 failure- 10 perform ihe Services saiisfaciorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any rcpon required hcreundcr; and/or
8.1.5 failure to perform any oiher covenant, term or condition of
this Agreemeni.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Eveni of DcfauU, the Siaic may
take any one, O' more, c all. of ihc follou-mjj aciion;;
t.2.1 give Ihc Coniracior a wriiicn noiice tpcclfyingihe Event of ■
Dcfauli and requiring ii tO be remedied iviihin. in the absence of
a greater or lesser spwificaiion of lime, thiny (30)day.s from li*
date of ihenoiice; ond ifihe Ev'cni of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective tvvo (2) day* afler giving the
Contractor notice of icnm'inaiion;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying ihc E\tni of
Ocfeuli and' suspending oil paymcnis 10 be made under this
Agrccmcni and ordering thai the portion of the coniraci price
which would oiherNvisc accrue to the Coniracibr during the
period from the date of such noiice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall TKver be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Comracior a written notice specifying the Event of
Default ond set off against any other obligations the State may
o^vt 10 the Contractor any damages the State sufTeis by reason of
any Event of Default; arid/or
8.2.4 give the Comracior a written notice specifying ihc Event of
Dcfauli. irent the Agreement as breached, icrminalc the
Agrccmcni and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof ader
, any Event of Default shall be deemed o \vaiver of its rights with
regard to thai Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No c.*pfcSS failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any funher or other Event of
Defaull on the pan of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, ihc Stale may, at its sole
discrclion. icrminalc the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by ihiny (30) days written notice to.ihe Contractor that
the State is e.vercising Its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shnll, at the Stale's disereilon, deliver to the
Contracting OfTicer, not later than fiflcerif 15) days nflcr the date
of tcrminntion, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, ond the contract price earned, to
and including the date of icrmination. The form, subject matter,
content, ond number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be ideniieal to those of any Final Report described in the otiached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion. the Comrnctor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early icrmination, develop and

submit to the State o Transition Plan for sen-ices under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS7C0NFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATJON.

10.1 As used ill this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all ■
information ond things developed or obieined during the
performance of, or ocquircd or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, repons,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, rfdco
recordings, pieioriot reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
repr^cnlBlions, computer projrami, computer printouts', notes,

letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, oil whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which hns been received from
the State or purchased with fur>d$ provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, sh.tll be the pro'pcny of the State, ond
shall be returned tothc'Sioic upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidcmialiiy of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA •
chapter 91 -A or other c.xisimg law. Disclosure of data requires
prior-written approval of the State.

11. COtNTRACTQR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
perrormance of this Agreement the Coniroetor is in oil respects
an independent contractor, or>d is r)ci>hcr on agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofTtcers, employees, ogents or members shall hove authority to
bind the State or receive any benefiij. workers' compchsoiion or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENTfDELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The ComrociOr shall not nssign, or othcnvlse transfer any
interest in thi.e Agrecnscw without the prior \vriitcn noiice, which
shall be provided to the Siote at.least fiflccn (15) days prior to
the assignmc'nt, and o written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, o Change of Control shall coruiiiute
ossignmcnt. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of rclntcd transactions in
which a third party, together with its BlTiliatcs. becomcs thc
direct or ir>direci ONwier of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity imcrcsis, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or jtubsianilally all
of the assets of the Conincior.

12.2 None of the Sen-ice.* shall be subconiractcd by the
Contractor \rithout prior written notice ond consent of the State.
The Siitr is entitled to copies of oil subcontracts a'nd &s.*ignmeni
ngreemcnts and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless oihcnvisec.sempied by law,
the Contractor shall indernntfy and hold harmlcs.^ ihe Sine, its
officers and employees, from ond against any ond all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property darhages.
patent or copyright infringcmeni, or other claims aissened against
the State, its ofTiccrs or employees, which arise oul'bWqj^*''''*"
may be claimed to -arise out of) the acts or omtsspn^

Page 3 of4
Comracior Initials.
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Coflirecior, or subconirsciorr, including bul not limited lO the
ixgligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The Stale shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contraciof arising under ̂
this paragraph 1J. Notwiihuanding the foregoing, nothing herein '
contained shall be deemed to consiitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, tvhich immunity is hereby reserved lo the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
lerminaiion of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

.14.1 The Comhacior shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuouxly mointoin in foree. and xhall require any
subconiftctor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance;
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance agalasi ail claim.*
of bodily injury, death or propeny damage, in omoonis of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrerKC and $2,000,000 aggregate
or e.sccss; end .
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
Subject to .subparagraph 10.2 herein; in an amoonl not less than
80y« of the whole replocemeni value of the properly.
14.2 The policies described irt subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms attd endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Oepanmcm of Insurance, and
issued by in.iurers licensed in the Stole of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Coniraciing Officer
idcniified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccnificBtc(.s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agrtcmcni.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OITtccr identified
in block 1.9. or hi.* or her successor. cenincaic($) of in.surance
for all renew3l{s) of insuraiKC required under this ABrccmeni no.
later than ten (10) days prior to the t-tpiraiion date of each
insurance policy. ' The ccnificaief.*) of insurance and any
renetvals thereof shall be tiiached and arc incorporaied herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, cenifics
and xvtrrants thai the Contrwior is in compliance with or c.tcmpi
from, the requirements of N.H. RSa chapter 281-A ("Workers
Conipenratlon ")■
15.2 To the e.<lcni the Contractor is subject to the requiremcnis
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain.

•  payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
eciiviiics which the person proposes to undenake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
28I'A and any applicable rcnewol($) thereof, which .shall be
wiachcd and arc incorporated herein by reference. The Stoic
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compcnsaiion.premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might orise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with Ihr
performance of the, Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a pany hereto to the other parsy
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or giNtn at the time
of mailing by ccnificd mail, postage prepaid, In a United States
Post Office Dddre.V!ed to the panies oi the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein. ^

17. amendment. This Agreement maybe amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrymcht. in writing sigttcd by the
parties hereto and only aRcr approval of such omertdmem,
vvaivcf or dlscherge by the Governor and E.xccullvc Council of
the Slate ofNew Hampshire unless no cuch approval is required
under the circumstances pursiiani to State low, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OK tAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in oceordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panies aiyJ ihcir respective successors
and assigns. The \yording used in ihii Agreement is the wording ,
chosen by the panies to c.tprcss their mutual intent, and i>o rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and

.maintained In New Hnmpshire Superior Court which shall have
e.sclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19.' CONFLICTINC TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as rhodified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or aitxhmenis and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P>37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit' any; third panics and this AgreciTtcnt .shall not be
construed to eonfer any such beneni.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
■for reference purposes only, and the vvords cqitiained therein
shall in no svty be held to csplain, modify, amplify or aid in the
inicrprciaiidn, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

12. SPEClAt PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions .set fonh in the aiiached EXHlOiT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEV£R/\BILITV. In the CN-eniariyofihe provisions of this
Agreement are held by t court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal Uw, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and cfTcei.

• 24. ENTIREACREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
c.sccuicd in a number of eounicrpans, each of which shall be

"deemed on-original, constitutes the entire ogrccmcni and
undersionding between the panics, and supersedes all -prior
agfcemciits and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Pflgc 4 ofd
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Small Rural Hospital Population Health and Hotspotting Project

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1. Effective pale/Complelion of Services. Is
amended as follows;

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the

State of New Hampshire as'indicated in block 1.17-, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective upon G&C
approval or June 1.2021 {'Effective Date"), whichever istaler.

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Dale/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as foiiows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up io two (2) additional years
from the Compielion Date, contingent upon' satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12. Assigrimenl/Delegation/Subcontracls. is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcdntraclors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor,
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor'shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying-the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide (he State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

—
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Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall assist and support the thirteen (13) New Hampshire Small
Rural Hospitals (SRHs) to implement the activities the hospitals choose as a
group from the menu of grant activities'provided annually by the Small Rural
Hospital Improvement Program Grant, svhich may include, but are not limited
to:

1.1.1. Joining accountable care organizations (ACOs).

„  1.1.2. Participating in shared savings programs.

1.1.3. Purchasing health Information technology, to comply with quality
improvement activities, which may. include advancing patient care
information, promoting interoperability, and payment bundling. -

1.2. The Contractor shall engage the thirteen (13) New Hampshire SRHs in order to "
identify how small rural facilities can target their services to the areas of highest
need. The Contractor shall:

.  1.2.1. Facilitate a peer-learning group of SRHs with the goal of sharing lessons
learned and current efforts to promote population health;

1.2.2. Support hospitals in completing the Pathways to Population Health
Compass Assessment to obtain a baseline of where their current
population health' efforts are along the continuum. .

1.2.3. Analyze the community benefit activities completed by the SRHs and
match expenditures to the most recenl Community Health Needs
Assessments to create an investment portfolio for each SRH.

1.2.4. Assist SRHs with identifying priority areas, as supported by data reports
issued by the Bureau of Public Health Statistics and Informatics (BPHSI)
which uses aggregated data publicly available on the Stale of New -
Hampshire Web-Based Interactive System for Direction and Outcome
Measures (WISDOM) portal, and connecting the SRHs with. Stale and
community resources to accomplish identified goals.

1.2.5. Liaise with the Department's DPHS Rural Health Manager to find
resources available for inillatives that SRHs are interested in
implementing:

t.2.6. identify Community Based Organizations that may support SRH
activities.

1.2.7. Appoint a Director of Population Health for this project who is available
to support SRHs and answer questions throughout the project period.

1.2.8. Host a monthly gathering of SRH population health managers_e^r
virtually or in-person, in order to: ■[
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1.2.8.1. Provide networlcingoppofiunities.

1.2.8.2. Provide resources for hospitals ready for the next phase of
the project, as defmed.in the worV plan.

1.2.8.3. Share success stories and lessons learned from those vyho
have successfully implemenled initiatives.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all contract activities are pre-approved by the
Departmenrs Rural Health and Primary Care Section (RHPCS).

1.4. The Contractor ̂ all coordinate a minimum of one (1) Medicare Bootcamp per
year, not to exceed two (2) Medicare Bootcamps per year. The Contractor shall
ensure:

1.4.1. Medicare Bootccamp curriculum supports the SRH revenue streams by ■
ensuring maximal reimbursement for services is obtained".

1.4.2. SRHs are aware of scholarship funds' available to support staff
attendance at Medicare Bootcamp trainings.'

1.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Oepariment to manage a scholarship
program that promotes Medicare Bootcamp attendance for SRH staff.

1:6. The-Contractor shall maintain a Medicare Bootcamp attendance list that
includes telephone and email contact information for each attendee, which must
be given to the Department's RHPCS no later than two (2) weeks following each
training.

1.7. The Contractor shall ensure Medicare Boolcamp participants are made aware
of and are encouraged to complete a Department-issued evaluation survey and
document if the participants would like to be contacted via phone or sent an
online survey.

1.8. The Contractor shall meet. In a frequency determined by the Contractor and
SRHs, with a representative group of Chief Financial Officers for the S'RHs to
plan aspects of learning sessions, which include but are not limited to:

1.8.1. Major objectives of the Bootcamps.

1.8.2. Recruitment of participants for the sessions.

1.8.3. Organizaliorl of all components of the education sessions for delivery.

1.8.4. Creation or selection of learning sessions based on the needs prioritized
by Chief Financial Officers.

1.9. The Contractor shall engage each interested SRH In the Population Health and
Hotspotting Project (PHHP), which utilizes hospital inpatient and outpatient data
provided by the Department as well as several National dalasets to examine
where certain physical health and social deiermlnanls of health risk factors are
clustered In hospital service areas to improve the health of residents "
hospital service area.and ensure maximal reimbursement in the iran^il^
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value^based payments. The Contractor shall ensure activities include, but are
not limited to:

1.9.1. Completing the Pathways to Population Health Compass Assessment,
created by the Institute for Healthcare Improvement, to assess how the
SRH are supporting population health efforts in their service area. The
Contractor' shall ensue the assessment team includes a variety of
siakehpld'ers, which may include but are not limited to:

1.9.1.1. PHHPcontact.

1.9.1.2. Staff responsible for Population Health.
1.9.1.3. Community Health Workers/Care Coordinators. ■

1.9.1.4. Hospital adminlstraiion.

1.9.1.5. Staff responsible for Community Benefits.
1.9.1.6. Quality improvement staff.

1.9.1.7. Staff responsible for Patient & Family Engagement.
1.9.2. Engaging SRHs to participate In the Population Health Peer Group,

which includes, but 1$ not limited to:

1.9.2.1. Peer-io-peer sharing of best praclices,
1.9.2.2. Tools utilized to create/promote population health Initiatives.
1.9.2.3. Overall strategies related to populatiori health.

1.9.3. Creating community benefits profiles by outlining:
1.9.3.1. Community investments; •
1.9.3.2. Health disparities Identified: and

1.9.3.3. Idehtlfication of how hospital investments are addressing
Identified disparities.

1.9.4. Supporting SRHs with identifying goals that advance population health
efforts, by reviewing service area holspolting analyses "from the
Department. The Contractor shall review holspolting analyses, which
Includes bul is not limited to:

1.9.4.1. Mapping of aggregate resident data by service area.
1.9.4.2. Heal maps that Indicate clusters of population health and

social determinants of health needs in hospital service
areas.

1.9.4.3. Highlights of the most prevalent needs in hospital service
areas and alignment with community benefit profiles.to
indicate opportunities for future investments.
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1.9.5. Assisting with the creation of action plans to address health disparities;
support effective and efficient investments; and improve population
health efforts.

1.9.6. Evaluating the data by;

1.9.6.1. . Assisting each hospital in the identification of metrics to
measure progress with population health acUvitles; and

1.9.6.2. Revisiting data at each development meeting with the SRHs
to understand the Impact of population health activities, the
data includes:

1.9.6.2.1. GIS Mapping/Hol-spotting data;

1.9.6.2.2. Completing and/or reviewing IHI Pathways to
Population Health Compass Assessrhents,
periodically, to measure progress; and

1.9.6.2.3. Community Benefit Profiles and investments.

1.9.7. Acting as the liaison between the Department's DPHS, Bureau of Public
Health Statistics and Informatics (BPHSI) and the SRH(s)

1.9.8. fleeting with hospital leadership to define which member(s) of each
hospital will participate in a learning collaborative for population health
initiatives.

1.9.9. Documenting monthly the number of times:

1.9.9.1. Contact was attempted via telephone.

1.9.9.2. Contact was made via telephone.

1.9.9.3. Meeting was held via telephone.

1.9.9.4. In-person-meeting was completed.

1.9.9.5. New hospital representative was recruited for learning
collaborative.

1.9.10. Documenting the number .of SRHs that participate in the learning
collaborative meetings, specifying dale. time, and participants.

1.9.11. Referrlrig SRHs to resources and programs available to enhance
population health efforts including those available at the Bureau of
Population Health and Community Services and the other Community
Based Organizations to implement and bolster new initiatives.

1.10. Work Plan

1.10.1. The Contractor shall work with the Department to finalize a Work Plan
for year one (1) of the Contract period within thirty (30) day^Jithe-
Contract effective date.
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•  1.10.2. The Contractor shall develop and submit a draft Work Plan for year two
(2) of the contract period no later than ninety (90) days prior to the end
of year one (l} of the Contract period.

1.10.3. The Contractor shall work with the Departnienl to finalize the Work Plan
for year two (2) of the Contract period prior lo the start of year two (2). "

1.10.4. The Contractor shall ensure work plans are used to confirm progress
toward meelir>9 the performance measures and program objectives.

1.10.5. The Contractor shall provide a final staffing and staffing contingency
plan 10 the Oepartmeni no later than five (5) days from the contract
effective dale.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliarice with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall rhanage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
r; accordance 'wlth the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security

Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply wilh all Exhibits 0 through K, which are attached
hereto and Incorporated by reference herein. •

3. Reporting Requirernents

3.1. The Contractor shall communicate to the Department's RHPCS through
monthly meetings held in person or with the use of a virtual platform that shall
Include, but is not limited to the following information:

3.1.1. Plans for implementing SHIP menu activities.

3.1.2. Specific activities provided.

3.1.3. " Budget status.

3.1.4. An attendance list for activities held.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure all reports are formatted in a manner that can be
shared directly with the SRHs.

4. Performance Measures

4.1, The Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are achieved
.annually and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement: .
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4.1.1. 50% of participant's report making a change or planning to make a
change in their billing processes as a result of attendance at Medicare
Bootcamp.

4.1.2. 50% of SRHs engage in the Population Health Peer Group through
recruitment efforts by the Contractor.

4.2. The Contractor shall develop and submit a Correclive Action Plan for any
performance measure in Section 4.1 that are not achieved to the Oepariment
on an annual basis

4.3. The Department seeks to actively and regularly collaborate with providers to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes-

4.4. The Department may collect other key data and metrics from Contraclor(s).
including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4.5. The Department.may identify expectations' for active and regular collaboration.
•Including key'performance objectives, in . the resulting contract. Where
applicable, Conlractor(s) must collect and share data with the Department in a
formal specified by Ihe Department.

4.6. The. Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.7. The Contractor may be required to provide other' key data arid metrics to the
Department, including client-levef demographic, performance, and service
data.

4.0. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect' and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department. . ' •• ••

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Leglstatjve Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, (he Slate has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a deiailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensuremeaningful access to programs and/or services io individu|I^^^
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limited English proriciency; Individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during .or resulting from the performance .of the
services of the Agreement shall Include the following statement, "The
preparation of this {report, document etc.) was rmanced under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the Uniled Stales Department of Health'and Human
Services."

5.3.2. •All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
dislribulionof use. ' , •

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories. ■

5.3.3.3.. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that Include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents -and other electronic or physical -dala
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the.Contracli and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase-requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind conlrlbuiigjg'S'
labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or requlf^"
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the Department.

6.2. During the term of this Agreerpent and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes; of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for In the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder. the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parlies hereunder (except such obligations as. by. the terms of the
Agreement are. to be. performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, thai if. upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the arriount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by federal funds from the Small Rural Hospital"
Improvement" Grant Program, as awarded on December 18. 2020. by the
United States Department of Health and Human Services. CFOA 93.301 FAIN
H3H00028.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement;

2.1. The Department has ideniified the Contractor as a Subreceipieni, In
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330..

2.2. The Department has ideniified this Agreement as NON-R&D. in
accordance svlth 2 CFR §200.87.

2.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 12.5% applies In accordance with
2 CFR §200.414.

' 3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
Incurred in the fulfillmeni of (his Agreement, and shall be in accordance wlih
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
3, Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month. which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
■ emailed to DPHSContract8illino(S)dhhs.nh.oov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health .and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

6. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt'of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and.
if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

7. The final invoice shall be due to the,Department no laterihan forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Dale.

8. The Contractor must provide the sen/ices in Exhibit B. Scope of Services, in
., compliance with funding requirements.

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part In the event of non-compliance with the lenrns and conditions
of Exhibit 8, Scope of Services. /)
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10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this.agreement may be withheld. In whole or in part, In the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable
to the sen/ices provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance' with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited' to adjusting amounis within (he price limitation end adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200. during the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Coniraclor Is subject lb audit pureuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28. Ill-b. pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C • The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual finandat audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Ceriified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of .the Contraclor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200. Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition 8 or Condllion 0 exists, the Contractor, shall subrnit an
annual finandal audit performed by an independent CPA within'120
days after the close of the Conlraclor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to. and no! in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the"
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed b'eca'use of such an exception.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-PftEE WORKPLACE REQUIRGMENTS

The Vendor idenliTted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with Ihe provisions of
Secltor\s 5151-5160 oftho Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 100-690. Tille V. Subtitle 0: 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.). and further agrees lo have .(he Contractor's representative, as idenlined in Sections
1.11 and l.12ofthe General Provisions execute the following Cenincalion:

ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACrORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the r^ulalior\s implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Orug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100^90. Tille V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 cl scq.). The January 31,
1969 regulations were amended ar>d published as Pan II of (he May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certificationby gr8nlees(and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contraclors), prior to award, thai they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (end by inference, sub-granlces end sub-contractors) (hel b e State
may elecl to make one'certification to the Oeparlmenl in each federal Tiscdl year in lieu of cenlficales for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by ihe certificailon. The certificate set out below is a • •
material rcpresenlalion of fact upon'which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of ihe cehificaiion shall be grounds for suspension'of payments, suspension or
lenmlnation of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmcnl. Conlraclors using this form shouW
send il to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Healih and Human Services
129 Plea'sant'Streei,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that II .will or will continue lo provide a drug-free v/orkplece by:
1.1. Publishing a stalemcnl notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled subsiance is prohibited in Ihe grantee's
workplace 8r>d specifying (he actions thai will be taken egairist employees for violalion of such
prohibitbn;

1.2. Establishing en ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace; v.
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. 'The penalties Ihat may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violalions

occurrir>g in the workplace;
1.3. (>4aking il a requirement Ihat each employee to be engaged in the periormance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee Iri the slalemeni required by paragraph (a) that, as a condilion ol

employmeni under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by Ihe terms oi (he slstement; and
1.4.2. Notify (he emptoyer in writing of his or her conviction (or a violation of a criminal drug

slatule occufring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying Ihe agency in wriling. within lert calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagreph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide noiice, including position title, lo every grant
officer on whose grani activity the convicted employee was working, unless (he Federal agency

(I'
Exhibli D - Ce(tlk<r«n regvdlng Drug Free Ver^ mmait
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has designated a central point for Ihe receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
iderilincalion number(s) of each affected granl;

1.6. Tcking on© of the following actions, vdihln 30 colendar days of receWng fx)lice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

■  1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
terminatlo'n. consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act ol 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug ebuse ossistar\ce or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Pedersl, State, or local hoahh.
law enforcement, or oiher eppropfieie agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs l.l, 1.2.1.3,1.4,1.5. and 1.6.

2. The granteo may insert Irt iho space provided below the silefs) for the perlormance of work done in
connection with the speciHc grant. ■

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code} (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file thai are not Idenlified here.

Vendor Narhe;

vr-

4/20/2021

Tille, gxecuiive otrector

Exhibit 0 - CertiAcstlon regarding Drug Freo Vendor inliUli
Workplace Requlremeni} 4/20/2021
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CgRTIFlCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor idenlined In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Lew 101*121. Governmenl wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as idenlined in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute (he following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US OEPARTMENT OF'EDUCATION * CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT,OF AGRICULTURE * CONTRACTORS

-Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporery Assistance lo Needy Families under Title IV*A
' 'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Serv'ices Slock Grent Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Developmen) Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge'and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or\Mll be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, lo
any person for Influencing or aTtemplIng lo influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of Ofny Federal contiaci. continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by speciftc mention
sub^ranlee or sub<onlr8ctor).

2. If any funds other than Foderal appropriated lurxis have been paid or will be pa'id lo any person for
influencing or elterhpting to influence art officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Cor>gress',
an officer or employee of Congress, or ai> employee of a Member of Congress in connection wilh this
Federal contract, grant, loart, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form ILL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certilication be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that aD sub •recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of tod upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission ol this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transactiori'imposed by Section 1352. Tilte 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails lo file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than StO.OOO and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

</20/2021 I
Dale NihW.'T^Wr'-Ames

Executive Director

Emioti E - CcnlAcMlM Rc9a/dlr)g Lobbying vendof initifli>> ■ ■ —
4/20/2021
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CgRTlFICATiON REGAROING DESARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Coniractor idenlirted In Section ^ .3 of ihe General Provisions agrees to comply with ihe provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and45CFR Part 7S regarding Oebarmenl,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility fitters, and further agrees to have the Coniractors
representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 and t;12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. 8y signing and submlning this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant ts providing the.

certification set out below. .

2. The inability of a person to provide Ihe certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participalion in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participanl shall submit an
explanation of wdiy it cannot provide the cenlficaiion. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Departmeni of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of (he prospective primary
participant to furnish a certificalion or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participalion in

.  this transaction.

3. The certificalion in this clause is a material representation of (act upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter into this transaction.' if it is later determined that the prospective
primary participanl knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available lb ihe Federal Government. OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participanl shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any lime the prospective primary participanl learns
that.ils cenificaiion was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction.* "debarred.' "suspended." "ineligible," "lower tier covered
iransaction,' "participant," "person." "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal." and'
'voluniarily excluded,' as used In this clause, have the meanings set cut in ihe Definitions and
Coverage sections of Ihe rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submining this proposal (contraci) thai, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
Iransaction wilh a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered Iranaaclion. unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participanl further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certiricalion Regarding Debarmenl. Suspension. Incligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by OHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and'ln all solicilalions for lower lie/ covered iransaclions:

8. A participanl in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower Her covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involunlarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method end frequency by which ii determines Ihe cligibilily of ils principals. Each
participant may, but is not required lo. check the Nonprocuremenl List (of excluded parlies).

9. Nothing coiilairied in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of e system Records
In order to render in good faith the certtricalion required by this clause. The knowledge andp-- -

EihiW F - Cenir«liofl Reqa'dinB Ottjaimenl. Swrpenifon Comndo/ lo>il»b
And Other Rasponalbitlly Mtlters 4/20/2021
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information of a perticipanl is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordirwry course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under parograph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into e lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, In
eddiiion to other remedies evaiiable to the Federal government, OHMS may terminate this transaction
for cause or defauti

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its khowledga and belief, that it and Us

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended,' proposed for debormeni. declared incVgiblo. or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency: '
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a dvil judgrneni rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offensa in
connection with oblaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embeulemenl. thefl', forgery, bribery, fatsifi(»lion or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen properly;

11.3. are riot presently indicted (or otherwise alminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) wllh commiss'ion of any of the offenses enumorated iri paragraph (l)(b)
of this certiftcation; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) termlneted for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary parUdpanl Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certincation, su^ prospective participant shall attach an cxptanoiion to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this'lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective tower tier parildpant. as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the tHjsl of its knowledge and belief that it and its prindpals:
t3.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for dcbarmenl, declared ineligible', or

voluntarily excluded from partidpalion in this trartsaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier parlidpant is unablo to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shal) attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospoctivo lower tier partidpant furlher agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this dause entitled 'Certification Regarding Oeba/ment. Suspension, inellgibllity, end
voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered TransKtions.* without modiricalion in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solidtatJons for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

4/20/2021

Diii '
Title: ■

6xecut>ve Director

—Exhtbi) F > CeniTicsdon Rooirding OetMnneni, Sviponjlon Contractor inUlalt
Ano Othot RotponilbSly Maitcrt 4/20/2Q21
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CERTIPICArtON OP COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO.
FEDERAL NONOISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contfactof identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature ol the Contractor's
representative as Identified In Sections v.i i ar*d 1.12 ol the General Provisions, to execute the following
cenification;

Controctor will comply, and win require ony subpronlees or aubconjfociors lo comply, with any applicable
federal noryfiscrimlnaiion requiremenls. which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) svhich prohibits
rocipicnts ol federal funding under this statute from diicriminalir>g. ellher In employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis ol lace. color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipicnls to produce an-Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Oclinquervcy Prevention Act ol 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Sale Streeis Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, cither in employment practices or in thc'delivery of services or
.benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requiremenls;

. the Civil Rights Act ol 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);

- the RehabiRlalion Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or acUviiy;

. the Americans with bisabllitles Act ol 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In cmploymer^t. State end local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;
- the Educallori Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections iset. 1683,1685-66). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis ol sex in federally assislcd education programs:

•the Age OiscrimlnaltonAclof 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6108-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis ol age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. H does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department ol Justice Regulations - OJ JOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department ol Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimlnatibn; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
end Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-malting
criteria for partnerships vrith fallh-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulaiions-EqualTrealmentfor Faith-Sased
Organizations); and WhlsUcbiower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Auttiorizalion
Acl(NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whislleblower Proleclions. which protects cmptoyees against
reprisal for certain whlsHe blowIng activllics lri connection with federal grants end contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation ol fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certificalion or violation ol the certification shall be grounds for .
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemmenl wide suspension or
debarmcnl. "•

•w

EiMMG
Centractw lAltUh

2^
«m4 4/20/2021
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In the event a Federal or Stale courl or Federal or Slate administrative ager^cy makes a frnding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national ongcn or sex
aaainst a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable conlracling agency or division svithin the Department of Health af>d Human Services, and
to the Depailmenl of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representetivc as idenliried in SccUons 1.11 and 1.12 of iho Gonoral Provisions, to execute the following
certificalion:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contracl) the Contractor agrees to comply wltt^ the provisions
Indicaied above.

Contractor Name:

Name: Peter Ames

4/20/2021

Dale

Executive Oirecior

[7^Exhibit C
Contrvctor InlUtls

CttfoOM «I Man# wVnV^ CvMf T«»»« t fiWvaaMfl
4/20/2021
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Ldw 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco SmoV'e. also known as Ihe Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smokinq not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or-leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provisipn of health, day care, education,
or Cbrary services to children under the age of 18, i( the services are furidcd by Federel programs either
direclfy or through Stale or local governmenis, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
(aw doe* not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities (ur^ed solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpaiieni drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with ihe provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day ano/or the Imposition of an administrative comj^iancc order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identiried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of ihe General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103'227, Part C, known as the Pro^hildren Act of 1994.

Contractor Narne:

• OMvllpM

4/70/2021

Date Nam¥:"F"ei«r*7vBes
Title, executive Director

EihibitK«C«rtirc«tipnReg»nrng ConiraciOf Inhub
EnvirpivrtaAtslTcibacco SmcXe, 4/20/2021
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Th€ Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with (he Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Startdards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontraclors and agents of the Contraclor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the Slate of New Harnpshire. Department of Health .and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

8. 'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Breac.h" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations. .v

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations. "

d. 'Oesionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AoareQation' shall have the'same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Ooeralions' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. • 'HITECH Act* means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Pad 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. .'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually ideniifiabte Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and arnendrnenls (hereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the lerrn "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
'and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFRSectlon164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United "States
Oepariment of Health and Human Services. - v

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or recely,
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

V20U * EiNbtll CorkUaclor b^ls
MMBn PonaMiiy Art
Buslrtcji Anoclalo ̂ feemeni 4/20/2021
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I. 'Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by lav/" in 45 CFR
Section 154.103. :•

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Oepadment of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

h. •Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information'.means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have ihe meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160. 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act. "■ ;

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosuro of Protected Health Information.

a.. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of Ihe Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, empioyees^and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b.. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
It. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregatior) purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement frorh such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with Ihe HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach'Notincalion
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of .the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose-any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so thai Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the d'tsdo.sure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busi^
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PH! until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies. -iA"

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
prolecled. health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved. Including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identificdtion;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
- 0 The extent to which (he risk to (he protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 40 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to (he
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security. ar>d
Breach Notification Rule.

d. ■ Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and

• Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreemeni. to agree in writing to adhere lo the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to reiurn or destroy the PHI as provided upder Section 3 (I). The Covered.Entity
shall be considered a direct third parly beneficiary of the Contractor's business
agreements with Conlraclor's intended business associates, who will be receiving'
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights ot enforcement end Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a wflt1er> request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Enlily. for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment o.f PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record-
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

}. Business Associate shall document such disclosures ol PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.526.

j. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for.an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Enlily such information as Covered Enlily may require to fuinil its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
•directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity.. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Enlily would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such" law arid notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Wthin ten (10) business days of termination of the-Agreemenl, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from. or created or received by Ihe Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up lapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Eiusiness Associate shail continue to extend the protections of the^
Agreement, to such PHI and limit furlher uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes lhat make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

3/20H EuyWl. Coftvaaof '
HcBfih wju/»(X< PortibSijy Ad
8u}!oe»9 Asioclaio Agieemeni 4/20/2021

P«9B4o16 r Dole



DocuSign Envelope ID; 676FE062-33F8-4D85.8B4B-6B135505EE4B

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: OCAB1052-08FC-4A24-A1D7-D888C190DAB7

' OocviSign Envtfop* tO: i8iE688i-7Al)9^3i7.9838>232CSD£OAOn

Now Hampshire Deparlmonl of Health and Humin Services

Exhibit (

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shell notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notico of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance wilh 45 CFR Section

164.520. to the extent that such change or timitalion may affect Business Associate's
use Of disclosure .of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promplly notify Business Associate of any'changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.508 or 45 CFR Seclion1S4.5O0.

c. Covered entity shall promptly noiify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure o.f PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,

-■ to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
■PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P*37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate .
Agreement set forth herein'as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity,
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6> Miscellaneous

a. Dennilions and Reoulatorv References. All lerms used, bul not otherwise d'eHnBd herein,
shall have the sarhe meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to'
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means (he Section as in effect or as

. amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Oala Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges thai it has no ownership rights
wilh respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interoretation". The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be r
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

y2014 • ExMttti Ccfti/ftciiv ■ '■
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e. SeareQatlon.. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or ctrcumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. reium or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) t. the
defense aryj indemnification provision^ of section (3) e arKl Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Foundation for Healthy communities

Coniraclor

I  . ' —-i-i ' . . .. .1 ^ ■ .,^1- I ■ —

Signature of Authorized Representative Signalure of Authorized Representative

Lisa M. Morris Peter Ames

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Director, Division of Public Health srvcs.

Executive oi rector

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

4/20/2021 4/20/2021

Date Date

rP'A
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABiUITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding AcoounUbility and Transparency Act (FFATA), requires prime awardees orindividual
Federal grants equal to or greater 6idn $25,000 and awarded on or after October t. 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensatior) and associated first-tier sut>^r8nts of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modiriCdUons result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reportif>9 requirements, as of the date of the sward.
In occordanco vi4th 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Componcation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the foltowing information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
,1. Nameofeniity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title deschptive of the purpose of the funding action -
7. Location.of the entity
B. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS ff)
10. Total compensation and names of the lop five executives if:

10.1. f^ore than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, end those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available ihrough reporting to ihe SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required dala by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 end Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Execulive Compensation Informationj.and further agrees
lo'have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
Dxoculo Iho following Certification:
The below namcd-Coniraclor agrees to provide needed information as .outlined above to Ihe NH
Department of Health and Human Services .and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial AccounlaMity and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

4/20/2021

oiii

OMHtion** 6r:

Title: Executive Director

r2^/i
ExhiW J - Certificalten Regtrding Ihe Federal Fortding Corrtractor inlilab^ ■
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FORMA

As (he Contractor IdenliHed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. 1 certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are.true and accurate.

61S33S283
1. The DUNS number for vour entity is: - '

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (i) 80 percent or more of your onnuel gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub^granis. and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) S25.000.000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranis. and/or
cooperative agreements? .

NO YES

If the answer to d2 above is NO. stop here

II the answer to 02 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does (he public have access to information aboul the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(d) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(d).'7do(d))or section 6104 of (he Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES, slop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the Five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

CuOwtviiort)

Etfibk J - Cflirctt'ion R«g«(4v)g lh« Federal Funding
AcoountsMiiy And Trentpaiency Act (FFATA) Compttftnce
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definilions • •'

The following lerms may be renecled and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach* means the loss of conuol, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unaulhorizod ecquisii'on. unauthorized access, or any similar term referring lo
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally idenlifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Proleded Health
Information, * Breach' shall have the same meaning as (he term 'Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Compuler Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Oepanmeni
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information' or 'Confidential Data' means all confidential informalion
disclosed by one parly lo the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case-Records.. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential information also includes any and-all information owned or managed by
the Slate of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
-Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information lnclu.des. but Is not limiied to
Protected Health Informalion (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payrnenl Card Induslry (PCI). and or other sensitive and confidential informalion.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor. -other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the lerrns of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance PorlabilUy and Accountability Act of 1996 and (he
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incideni' means an act thai potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy.
. which includes atiempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a

■  system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, (he unauthorized use of
I; a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes lo system hardware,

firmware, or software characteristics-wilhoul .the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouling of physical or electronic

>01
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, ail of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modiricdtion or deslruciion.

7. "Open Wireless Network* means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Depanmeni of inlcrmatlon
Technology or delegate as a proiected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFt.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information' (or 'Pi') means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individuars identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:l9. blometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable lo a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name.elc.

9. 'Privacy Role* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Informaiion ai 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Slates Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information" (or 'PHr) has the same meaning as provided' in the
definition of 'Protected Health Informaiion" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule al 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for (he Protection of Electronic
Proiected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health information" means Proiected Health Information that Is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, uiireadable, or trxlecipherable (o unauthorized individuals and Is

developed of endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
(he Americari National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A.' Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential information.

1. The Contractor musl not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Informaiion

except as reasonably necessary as outlined urrder this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to .all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, musl not
use. disclose, maintain or transmll PHI in any manner (f^t would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response lo a
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request for disclosure on the basts that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first nollfying OHHS so that OHMS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure..

3.' If OHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound-by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Secunty Rule, the Contractor must be-bound by such
additional restriciions and must not disclose PHI'in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that OHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees OHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract..

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Applicaiion Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DH^fS data containing
Confidential Data between applicalbns. the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeabie in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User, may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices; such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting OHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email lo transmil Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information. .

4. .Encrypted Web Site.- If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data Iransmiited via a Web site.'

5. File Hosting Sen/ices, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cernried ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a nanned individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices lo transmit
Confidential Dala said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless f^ietworks. End User may not transmit Corifidenlial Data via an open

•o»
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wireless network. End User must erriploy a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely Iransmittirvg via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is ernploying remote commur»icalion to
access or transmit confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must bo
Installed on the End User's mobile dovic©(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the.Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting .Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deteiion cycle.(i.e. Confidential Data wilfbe deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices, if End User is transmitting Confidenlia! Data via wireless devices, ail
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such lime, the Contractor will have 30' days to destroy the data and any
derivative in vsrtiatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected, in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
Stales. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implerhentation of
cloud computing, doud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to delect potential security events thai can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Deparimeni confidenlia! Inforn^lion for contraclcr provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and educaliori for its End
tJsers in support of protecting (Department corifidenlial information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location arid Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HiTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes arxJ
regulations regarding the privacy 3r>d security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anii-spyware. and anti-matware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive inirusion-detection and Tirewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperalion with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Informalion on its systems (or Its'
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposir>g of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
pbtain written certification for any Stale of New Harripshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster *
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitizaiion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 600-68, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sariitization, National Institute of Standards end Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
lime of the data destruction, and will provide written certincation to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to.
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional siandards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor, prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specined, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Oala using.a
secure method such as shredding. ; •

3. (Jnless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of.the termination of this
Contract; Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY - ■ -
y: " •

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as foSlows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect' Department
confidential informalion collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor wilt maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
conTidentiat information throughout the information lifecyde. where applicable, (from
crealion, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and -access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit; or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper securUy monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events thai can impact Slate of NH systems and/or
Department conridenlial information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Conlractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department copfldential information.

6. If- the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting (he services for Stale of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that' defines specific security
expectations, and monltorlrig compliance to security requirements thai at a minimum
match those for the Contractor; including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply v^th all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
arid procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and mairitaining access to any Department syslem(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

B. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the.Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsibie for malrttaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable (he Departmetii and
Contractor to monitor for-any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement.- The survey will -be completed
annually, or an alternate tirrie frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contracior, or the Department rriay request the survey be completed when the
scope of the er>gagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or oulside the tx)undaries of the United Slates unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Dale Security Breach Liability. In (he event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contracior all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contraclor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Conrtdentlai Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security ol PI and PHI at a level and scope thai is not less
than the level and scope of r^ulrements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a).- DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164) that govern proleclions for individually identinable health
information and as applicable under Slate law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate admlnistralive. technical, and
physical safeguards' to protect the conridenilaiity of the -Conndential Daia and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it.. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than ihe level and scope of security requirements
established by the Slate of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement ,ai hnps:/Avww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.hlm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating 16 vendors.

14. Contractor agrees Id maintain a documenied breach notincation and Irtcident
response process. The Coniraclof will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any-securlly breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security irx:ident, or suspected breach, which affects or includes any State of New

. Hampshire systems that connect to ihe Stale of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to (he Conridential Data obtained under (his

Contract to only those authorized End tJsers who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes Identified in this Contracl.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section' IV A. "'above,
implemented to protect Confideniial Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss. Ihefl or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Informaiionai all times..

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI.-PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails conlalning Confidential Inforrnation only if encrvpted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses' of persons aulhonzed to
receive such Informaliorl.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
idenliftabte data derived from DHHS Oaia, must be stored in an area that Is
physically er>0 technologically eocuro from access by unauthorized persons
durlr>Q duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric tdentifiers. etc.).

Q. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. Including arty
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted el ell limes when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other Instances Confidenilal Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as deterrhined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliarce of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct ensile inspeciions to monitor compliance" with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. H'IPAA.
end other applicable laws and Federal regula.llons until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must rxjlify the Stale's Privacy Officer ar)d Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI. • • '

The Contractor musl further handie and report.Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance wiih all applicable obligations and .procedures.
Coritractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information Is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to.determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to lncidenls; and
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5. Determine whether Breach r>otincation Is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach notincaiion methods, liming, source, and' conienis from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as we!) as any miiigatior^
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that irriplcate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

0HHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer:

OHHSInformationSecuhiyOffice@dhhs.nh.90v

V5. Ust upd*ie tOrOS/tS
OHHS

Security Requlremenl}
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